
Date Published:11 September 2018     

Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 19 September 2018 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Powick

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 
2018.

Laura Powick

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda

Laura Powick

4  COMMISSIONING DIRECTORS REPORT (Pages 11 - 48)

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and 
Infrastructure to update the Committee on current issues. 

The Commissioning Director’s Report also includes the Quarter 1 
2018/19 Performance Report.

Nigel Riglar

5  TRADING STANDARDS (Pages 49 - 54)

To receive a report on performance. 

Andy 
Hermiston

6  COTSWOLD NATIONAL PARK STATUS 

To receive a verbal update on progress with the scrutiny review of 
the proposal.

Cllr Kevin 
Cromwell



    

7  CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 55 - 56)

The Committee to note a report from the Chief Fire Officer, detailing 
information on the portfolio of services provided by the 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service on behalf of 
Gloucestershire County Council.

Andy 
Hermiston

8  WORK PLAN (Pages 57 - 58)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings. (Work plan attached). 

Cllr Robert Bird

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

7 November 2018
16 January 2019
6 March 2019
22 May 2019
17 July 2019
18 September 2019
26 November 2019

Laura Powick

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird (Chair), Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Keith Rippington, Cllr Stephen Hirst 
and Cllr Rachel Smith 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
held on Wednesday 11 July 2018 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Robert Bird (Chair)
Cllr Dr John Cordwell
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Jeremy Hilton

Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Keith Rippington
Cllr Rachel Smith

Substitutes: Cllr Alan Preest

Apologies: Cllr Stephen Hirst

73. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Stephen Hirst.

Cllr Alan Preest substituted at the meeting for Cllr Hirst. 

74. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2018 were approved and signed by the 
Chair subject to the following amendments at:

a) Page 2, item 67, paragraph 8, where it should read ‘On being put to the 
Committee, the majority of members (7) voted for the report, as it stood, 
being presented to Cabinet for its consideration at its meeting on 6 June 
2018. Cllr Rachel Smith voted against the report being presented to 
Cabinet’; and at

b) Page 3, item 68, paragraph 6, where it should read ‘Following the 
discussion, the Commissioning Director committed to recruiting to an 
outreach post as soon as possible within the next 6 months, and for a 
report from the post holder to be received by the Committee 6 months 
from the commencement of their role.’

One member also highlighted that a visit to the Hempsted Household Recycling 
Centre, which had been requested at the previous meeting, had not yet been 
arranged. It was agreed that this would be followed up and arranged.  

75. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

76. CROSS COUNTRY RAIL FRANCHISE CONSULTATION 

Robert Niblett, Planning Officer, provided the Committee with an update on the 
Cross Country franchise consultation. 

It was noted that Cross Country was the largest of all franchises and that it served 7 
of Britain’s 10 biggest cities, with all services calling at Birmingham New Street. 
40.1 million passenger journeys were made annually. 

It was explained that the Department for Transport issued consultation sought to 
address the issues of overcrowding and lack of capacity across the Cross Country 
franchise area. Other issues affecting the franchise included the lack of rolling 
stock. 

Locally, the franchise served four stations, including Ashchurch for Tewkesbury, 
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Lydney. Issues affecting these stations included the 
impact of the opening of Worcestershire Parkway station on Ashchurch from Spring 
2019; the need to reconnect Gloucester to the main network; the lack of capacity on 
the Cardiff to Nottingham service with their two carriage trains instead of three, 
which could cause overcrowding particularly between Cheltenham and Gloucester; 
and maintaining, as a minimum, the number of stops and preferably increasing 
them at peak times at Lydney. 

It was noted that the consultation closes on 30 August 2018. 

Several members highlighted their concern about any proposed reduction in the 
number of stops at Lydney. Several members also expressed their concern about 
the lack of capacity on Cross Country trains, particularly those with two carriages. 
One member highlighted the number of trains that drive through Gloucester without 
stopping, whilst another member proposed that the services at Ashchurch should 
be improved. 

It was clarified, following a query, that GCC had previously contributed funding for 
an additional stop at Ashchurch. As this had been deemed successful, the stop had 
since been incorporated into the existing timetable. Clarification was also sought on 
the minimum level of services agreed in 2007 and on progress with the 
electrification of railways. 

 
Following the discussion, it was agreed that the views expressed at the meeting by 
members would be included in the draft officer response to the consultation. This 
draft would be circulated to Committee members and the lead Cabinet Member for 
any further comments and approval by the end of July 2018. The final draft would 
then be submitted to the consultation by the deadline as an officer level response 
with approval from the Committee and the lead Cabinet Member.

77. LIBRARIES 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Jane Everiss, Head of Library and Registration Services, gave a presentation to the 
Committee on how libraries have developed, the range of services provided by 
libraries, and community hub relationships. Cllr Tim Harman, Cabinet Member for 
Public Health and Communities, also attended the meeting.

In particular, members were informed that Gloucestershire Libraries received over 2 
million visits per year and offered freely accessible services that support reading 
and literacy, develop skills, promote health and wellbeing, and provide a platform 
for community participation. 

The Committee noted that Gloucestershire Libraries had recently partnered with 
GFirst LEP to provide 31 access points to business advice and information through 
The Growth Hub @ The Library, had taken on provision of children’s services in 
libraries, and supported Registration Services.

Members were also informed that Gloucestershire Libraries were leading the way 
with digital innovation. Bishops Cleeve and Up Hatherley libraries had digital gadget 
bars, and Bishops Cleeve had an Open+ system installed in November 2017 which 
allowed customers to self-serve.  One member queried the age limit to be able use 
the Open+ system.

Clarification was sought regarding the visa checking service that would be provided 
by libraries, the location of registration services provided by libraries, the 
recruitment of library volunteers, and the level of funding received by libraries. One 
member requested more detailed data for library services over the last five years to 
determine whether library services had improved, in addition to an update on 
Stonehouse library. There was also a discussion around rebranding the term 
‘library’, multicultural use of libraries, and how libraries attract dementia groups to 
use their facilities. 

In response to a query regarding the inappropriate use of library computer systems, 
it was explained that IT systems filter out inappropriate websites, and computer 
usage could be monitored and reported. 

It was also explained, in response to a further query, that Gloucestershire Libraries 
had received £230,000 over a three year period from the Esme Fairbairn 
Foundation, and a further bid had been submitted to extend the funding. 

The Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities highlighted the positive 
progress made by libraries and encouraged members to be ambassadors for the 
libraries within their divisions. 

78. ELECTRIC VEHICLE INFRASTRUCTURE 

Philip Williams, Lead Commissioner: Community Infrastructure, gave a presentation 
to the Committee on electric vehicle (EV) infrastructure.

The Committee was provided with an overview on EVs in the national and local 
context, details on what EV infrastructure looked like, and progress with EV 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

infrastructure in the County to date. Members were informed that the next steps 
were to produce a draft EV infrastructure strategy and a three year action plan, 
which would include a programme coordinator resource. 

It was also noted that in May and June 2018, the low emission and electric vehicle 
car pool scheme for GCC staff members had saved 3 tonnes of CO2.

Members sought clarification on the charging and types of EV batteries; induction 
charging; the cost of charging equipment; and the three year action plan. Several 
members commented on the importance of having a flexible action plan. There was 
also a discussion regarding raising public awareness of EVs, on-street EV charging, 
and working with key groups, such as car clubs. 

One member highlighted that residents in rural areas were interested in EVs, 
however had concerns regarding charging points due to a lack of private parking 
outside homes. It was noted that officers were keen to work with parish councils 
and to establish local champions.

In response to a query, it was clarified that officers were in conversation with 
national power companies regarding the impact of EVs on the national grid. 
Following a further query, the Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and Infrastructure 
agreed to look into the disposal of EV batteries. 

Following the discussion on the item, the Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure proposed that updates on EV infrastructure be included on the work 
plan for the Committee as a standing item for the next 6 to 9 months. 

79. CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT 

The Committee received a report from Andy Hermiston, Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
detailing information on the portfolio of services provided by the Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) on behalf of Gloucestershire County Council. 

In particular, the Committee was informed that GFRS was exploring options to 
improve resilience and efficiency across all five whole-time Stations through the 
Wholetime Duty Shift Review, that the National Framework Gap Analysis had 
shown that GFRS was compliant with Section 1.4 of the revised Fire and Rescue 
National Framework, and that, as part of the Fire Safety Programme update, the 
current recording system used by GFRS had been updated in line with new 
technology and modern working practices. 

The Committee noted the published Home Office workforce diversity and incident 
data for all fire and rescue services in England. It was also noted, in an update on 
Trading Standards, that a shop in Eastgate Street had been closed and banned 
from trading for 3 months as it had been identified as one of the most prolific 
sources of illegal tobacco in Gloucester.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Additionally, the Committee was notified of an increase in local wildfires recently 
that had been contained, and was informed that GFRS had assisted in the 
response to the recent wildfires in Greater Manchester. 

The Chair read out the following statement to the Committee regarding the recent 
resignation of the Chief Fire Officer:

‘Early last week Stewart Edgar resigned from his role as Chief Fire Officer and 
Operations Director for Gloucestershire County Council. Interim arrangements have 
been put in place to manage the portfolio of services overseen by the Chief Fire 
Officer. Deputy Chief Fire Officer, Andy Hermiston, supported by Assistant Chief 
Fire Officer, John Beard, will manage the service and other aspects of the Chief 
Fire Officer’s role. Peter Jones, former Deputy Director of the Council and ex-Chief 
Fire Officer of Gloucestershire, will provide executive oversight on an interim basis. 
In light of the circumstances surrounding these events, an internal audit 
investigation is currently ongoing, and it would be inappropriate for this Committee 
or members to provide any further comment at this time.’

Cllr Jeremy Hilton proposed that a scrutiny task group be established to consider 
the purchase and disposal of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service assets since 
February 2014.

The Committee discussed the proposal in detail. Noting that an internal audit 
investigation was currently ongoing, one member suggested that the proposal be 
deferred for consideration at Overview and Management Scrutiny Committee on 25 
July 2018, following an update on progress with the current investigation at that 
meeting. Cllr Hilton agreed to defer consideration of his proposal to that meeting. 

80. COMMISSIONING DIRECTORS REPORT 

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, updated the 
Committee on current issues. In particular, members noted that:

a) Philip Williams and the Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and Infrastructure 
had been invited to attend a scrutiny committee meeting at Cheltenham 
Borough Council to discuss parking;

b) The Trial Boots Corner Closure had commenced under an Experimental 
Traffic Regulation Order and that advisory notices were currently being 
issued to drivers that transgressed the order;

c) The A417 Missing Link ‘Preferred Route Announcement’ would take place in 
spring 2019;

d) Following a request from Cheltenham Borough Council for GCC to sponsor 
the scheme for delivering highway works for the Cyber Business Park 
project, a report to consider this will be taken to Cabinet in October;

e) The new Chair of the Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership had been 
announced; and

f) In an update on the Forward Fund, GCC had entered into conversations to 
develop the business case for the M5 Junction 10 scheme.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Members asked questions regarding noise complaints relating to the A40 Over 
Roundabout works, the Council’s decision to appeal against the ICO’s decision 
notice relating to the Ernst and Young Value for Money and Affordability Analysis 
report, transfer of waste to Javelin Park, and waste analysis procurement. 

It was requested that an item on the effectiveness of the Lengthsmen Scheme be 
included on the work programme for consideration by the Committee at a future 
meeting. 

Clarification was also sought on information included in the Quarter 4 2017/18 
Performance Report relating to the increase in the number of killed and seriously 
injured older people. 

81. WORK PLAN 

At its meeting on 19 September 2018, the Committee would receive an update from 
dual hatted Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC) and 
Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee members on GEGSC’s 
consideration of an item on national park status for the Cotswolds, and a report on 
the performance of Trading Standards. 

82. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2018 and for 2019. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 1.00 pm

Page 6



Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
11 July 2018

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

118. Minutes The minutes to be amended at:
- Page 2, item 67, paragraph 

8, where it should read ‘On 
being put to the Committee, 
the majority of members (7) 
voted for the report, as it 
stood, being presented to 
Cabinet for its consideration 
at its meeting on 6 June 
2018. Cllr Rachel Smith 
voted against the report 
being presented to Cabinet.’

- Page 3, item 68, paragraph 
6, where it should read 
‘Following the discussion, 
the Commissioning Director 
committed to recruiting to an 
outreach post as soon as 
possible within the next 6 
months, and for a report 
from the post holder to be 
received by the Committee 6 
months from the 
commencement of their 
role.’

Laura Powick Completed

2 Minutes To arrange for Committee 
members to visit the Hempsted 
Household Recycling Centre

Wayne Lewis
Laura Powick

A visit has been 
arranged for 10 
September 2018.

3 Cross Country 
Rail Franchise 
Consultation

- The views expressed at the 
meeting by members to be 
included in the draft officer 
response to the consultation.

- This draft to be circulated to 
Committee members and 
the lead Cabinet Member for 
any further comments and 
approval by the end of July 
2018.

- The final draft to be 
submitted to the consultation 
by the deadline of 30 August 
2018 as an officer level 
response with approval from 
the Committee and the lead 
Cabinet Member.

Robert Niblett
Laura Powick

Draft response 
circulated to 
members for further 
comment on 
02/08/2018. Deadline 
for comments 
16/08/2018.

Page 7



4 Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure

The Cabinet Member for Fire, 
Planning and Infrastructure to 
look into the disposal of EV 
batteries and to update Cllr 
Hilton.

Cllr Nigel Moor Progress with the 
action to be 
confirmed

5 Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure

To include EV Infrastructure 
updates as a standing item on 
the work plan for the next 6-9 
months

Laura Powick Updates to be 
included in the 
Commissioning 
Director’s report. 
Separate EV 
infrastructure item 
updates to be 
considered as 
required

6 Chief Fire Officer 
Report

- An update on the internal 
audit investigation into the 
circumstances relating to the 
resignation of the Chief Fire 
Officer to be provided at the 
OSMC meeting on 25 July 
2018

- Cllr Hilton’s proposed 
scrutiny task group to be 
deferred for consideration at 
that OSMC meeting 
following the update. 

Stephen Bace
Nigel Riglar

The update on the 
internal audit 
investigation and the 
discussion on the 
task group proposal 
to take place during 
the scrutiny update at 
the OSMC meeting 
on 25 July 2018.

7 Commissioning 
Director’s Report

An item on the effectiveness of 
the Lengthsmen Scheme to be 
included on the work plan for 
consideration by the Committee 
at a future meeting. 

Laura Powick Added to the work 
plan as a future item

8 Commissioning 
Director’s Report

To circulate further details 
relating to the Quarter 4 
2017/18 Performance Report 
data on the increase in the 
number of killed and seriously 
injured older people with Cllr 
Rachel Smith

Philip Williams Progress with the 
action to be 
confirmed 

9 Work Plan At the September meeting, dual 
hatted Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee (GEGSC) and 
Environment and Communities 
Scrutiny Committee members to 
provide an update on GEGSC’s 
consideration of an item on 
national park status for the 
Cotswolds, and a report on the 
performance of Trading 
Standards to be received. 

Laura Powick Items added to the 
work plan

Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

19th September 2018 

Commissioning Director’s Report (draft for NR) 

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.   

1 Decisions 

1.1 Relevant decisions by County Council, Cabinet, Cabinet Members and delegated to 
Officers, by date taken: 

 Procurement of Contracts for Wood Recyclate Services at Gloucestershire’s
Household Recycling Centres (urgent decision, Cabinet Member – Fire, Planning
and Infrastructure, Aug) 

 Changes to the Household Recycling Centre Opening Hours (Cabinet Member –
Fire, Planning and Infrastructure, Aug) 

 Highways Asset Management and Code of Practice (Cabinet, Jul)

 Energy Procurement (Gloucestershire County Council Estate and Schools)
(Cabinet, Jul)

 Tender and Award of Transport Contracts under the Dynamic Purchasing System
for Transport (Cabinet, Jul)

 Capital Funding for Gloucester Canal Towpath (Cabinet, Jul)

 Financial Monitoring Report: 2018-19 (Cabinet, Jul)

 Council Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy (2019-20 to 2021-22)
(Cabinet, Jul)

 Contract Award for Metz Way to Abbeymead Ave Improvement Scheme (N
Midland Const Plc) (Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, Jul)

 Report It (Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, Jul)

 Agreement to withdraw the Share A Book Vehicle (Commissioning Director:
Communities and Infrastructure, Jul) 

 Highways and Biodiversity Working Group (Full Council, June)

 Consultation on proposed relocation of Stonehouse Library (Commissioning
Director: Communities and Infrastructure, Jun) 

 Extension of the Food Waste Contract with Andigestion Ltd (Commissioning
Director: Communities and Infrastructure, May) 

 Contract Award for A40 Arle Court Bus Priority Scheme to Alun Griffiths Ltd
(Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, Apr)

1.2 Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due: 

 Western Gateway Shadow Sub-National Transport Body (Cabinet Member -
Economy, Skills and Growth, due 3-28 Sep 2018) 

 A4173 Safer Roads Fund (Finance Approval) (Cabinet, due Oct 2018)

 Parking Operational Services Contract (Cabinet, due Oct 2018)

 Financial Monitoring Report 2018-19 (October 2018) (Cabinet, due Oct 2018)

 Corporate Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy (For Publication and
Consultation) (Cabinet, due Dec 2018)

 Financial Monitoring Report 2018-19 (December 2018) (Cabinet, due Dec 2018)

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=1168
http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=1168
http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=1167
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1152
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1148
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1147
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1147
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1146
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1144
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1143
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1159
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1159
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1160
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1138
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8883/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%2027-Jun-2018%2010.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1137
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1139
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1136
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=26634&Opt=0
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27174&Opt=0
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27073&Opt=0
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=24974&Opt=0
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=24977&Opt=0
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=24977&Opt=0
http://192.168.220.171:9071/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=24976&Opt=0


2 Highway and Transport Authority 

2.1 Highway Maintenance 
2.1.1 Highways Contract (update) 

 The Highways Term Maintenance Contract procurement entered into the final 
phases with competitive negotiation sessions held in June with the three final 
bidders Alun Griffiths, Skanska and Ringway.  Final tenders were received on the 
15th of August and the evaluation process is underway.  Preferred bidder 
announcement is expected on the 24th September. 

 Cabinet Panel (cross-party) met in July and was updated on the Amey 
demobilisation plan and the highways contract procurement.  Members also 
visited Amey’s Operation Control Room to meet the team and see the new works 
management software ‘Workzone’ being used to programme works gangs. 

 Amey has done a good job of recovering the network following a difficult winter, 
which saw a significant increase in safety defect numbers.  By June some gangs 
were able to move off pothole recovery works and begin work on the annual 
programme of minor works and other capital schemes. 

 This is the first year which see’s the doubling of the resurfacing programme as 
part of the £150m investment in highways.  This year’s programme has a focus 
on main roads with a number of large A road resurfacing schemes already 
completed.  Years 3 and 4 of the programme are more focused on local C and 
Unclassified roads. 

2.1.2 Highways Local (update) 

 Members have now agreed their Highways Local works for the year and works 
are either in design or underway.  The target is to complete 80% or more of the 
works by December, given that this is the last year of the Amey contract, and the 
desire is to have the 4th quarter focused on mobilisation of the new contractor. 

2.1.3 Lengthsmen (update) 

 The Lengthsmen programme got underway in May, although Local Highways 
Managers (LHMs) have had some difficulty in pulling together programmes of 
work due to lack of engagement by some Members.  LHMs are going direct to 
local parishes and community groups to put work lists together. 

2.1.4 Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs, update) 

 2017/18 TRO budget (£100k agreed at Council) – four schemes have been 
successfully scored in priority assessment: 

o Wotton under Edge Parking Restriction Package – Formal consultation 
complete.  Objections have been received and upheld and officers are 
preparing a TRO report. 

o Cheltenham Parking Restrictions Package – Formal Consultation is 
complete.  Objections have been received and upheld and officers are 
preparing a TRO report. 

o Gloucester Restricted Parking Zone – Legal Services has been instructed 
to draft orders and intend to notice, awaiting advertising dates for formal 
consultation. 

o Gloucester Prohibition of Driving – Legal Services has been instructed to 
draft orders and intend to notice, awaiting advertising dates for formal 
consultation. 

 A list has been compiled of all TRO’s (including hump notices and development 
funded TROs) that are ongoing.  This list is updated monthly and is available on 
the Council’s website here.  

Page 12

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/traffic-regulation-orders-tro-and-traffic-schemes/


2.1.5 LED Street Lighting Project (update) 

 2018/19 will see completion of the required 54,000 conversions to LED.  The 
programme of works is available on the Council’s website here.   

2.1.6 Highways and Biodiversity Working Group (new item) 

 The County Council at its meeting in June agreed to form a Highways and 
Biodiversity Working Group, aiming to protect and encourage endangered 
species of plant and wildlife to flourish in grass verges.  The Working Group will: 

o Work with districts, towns and parishes to develop highways management 
systems that protect and support biodiversity in Gloucestershire. 

o Review the Council’s highways and biodiversity guidance for 
Gloucestershire, taking into consideration Plantlife's Road Verges and 
Wildlife Management Guidelines. 

o Embed action points into highway management contracts which give 
contractors clear instructions and communicate expectations.  For 
example, the pro-active management of registered conservation verges. 

 The initial meeting was held on 10th September; a verbal update will be provided 
at the meeting. 

2.2 Highway Useage 
2.2.1 Network Management 

 Asset Management (update) 
o An Annual Report is produced retrospectively outlining Asset Management 

activities around Highways Maintenance.  The latest version covering 
2016/17 is now available on the County Council’s website and can be 
viewed here. 

o The Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) is available on the website 
in a chapter by chapter format to allow for a gradual updating of the Plan.  
It can be viewed here. 

o The Asset Management Policy statement was approved by Cabinet in July; 
it is available on the Council’s website here.  Cabinet also approved the 
adoption of the new Code of Practice for Management of Highway 
Infrastructure.  The TAMP will require some amendments to reflect this, 
which will be completed by October 2018. 

 Parking (update) 
o Cheltenham Railway station displacement – a new Experimental TRO 

takes effect from the 3rd Sept and is intended to relieve some parking 
pressure while the Railway Car Park is redeveloped. 

o New Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) enforced Bus lanes are 
now active in Boots Corner and the A40 in Cheltenham and Penalty 
Charge Notices (PCNs) are being issued.  It is planned for one more Bus 
Lane to start automated enforcement in Sep, with two more following in 
Gloucester in the same month. 

 Road Safety (update) 
o The new ThinkTravel Coordinator, Jo Atkins, is now in post to support the 

Council’s work on active travel, the Council’s Travel Plan and to oversee 
school travel plans.   

 Air Quality (update) 
o Following the Air Quality and Health Task Group report, which was 

considered by Cabinet at its June meeting, officers have circulated draft 
Terms of Reference and Governance proposals for the Air Quality and 
Health Partnership and have arranged the first meeting on 26th September. 

Page 13

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/led-street-lighting/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8883/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%2027-Jun-2018%2010.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/uploads/documents/Road_Verge_Campaign_full_guidelines_2015.pdf
http://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/uploads/documents/Road_Verge_Campaign_full_guidelines_2015.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2153/highways-annual-asset-management-report-2017-r1.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/transport-asset-management-plan-tamp/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/plans-policies-procedures-manuals/highways-policy-and-guidance-documents/


This will put in place a multi-agency structure to take forward the 
recommendations of the Task Group.  It will be followed by a workshop in 
October to develop an action plan. 

o In response to a High Court ruling in February 2018, DEFRA issued a 
direction to 33 towns and cities in England where air quality levels do not 
meet EU legal limits for Nitrogen Dioxide.  It gave them until 31st July 2018 
to respond with proposals to comply with these limits within the shortest 
possible timescale.  Cheltenham is the only Gloucestershire authority 
directly affected.  The final version of Cheltenham’s Air Quality Targeted 
Feasibility Study was submitted to Defra by the statutory deadline.  
Cheltenham Borough Council hopes that Defra will agree to their request 
to retain remaining grant money.  The money would be used to work with 
the County Council and GCHQ to address air quality (as described in Parts 
4 and 5 of the study).  This would result in an air quality legacy for 
Cheltenham as a direct result of the Ministerial Direction. 

2.2.2 Cheltenham Transport Plan (update) 

 Phase four (Trial Boots Corner Closure) – commenced on 28th June 2018 under 
an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO).  The experimental TRO will 
run for an initial 10 month period, as specified by the TRO committee 
recommendation in Jan 2015.  An officer report and recommendation on whether 
to make permanent, modify or abandon will be created following the formal 
consultation period ending at Month 6.  This will be discussed with the 
Commissioning Director: Communities & Infrastructure for review prior to any 
TRO committee.  If the recommendation/ decision is to modify the experiment, it 
will run for the full 18 month period to December 2019. 

 Initial traffic monitoring data has been positive with no one road seeing any 
significant increase in traffic.  It is early days in the trial, but it does appear that 
motorists are adjusting their journeys and traffic is dispersing across the wider 
network.   

 Additional traffic management was put in place during the first month of the trial 
resulting in significantly fewer violations of the bus gate.  Enforcement of the bus 
gate is now in place via ANPR camera.   

 CBC is installing additional street furniture and features at Boots in September 
which will give the area a more pedestrianised friendly feel. 

 Consultation responses continue to be received, although not significant in 
number.  The main focus has been on Blue Badge space provision and on 
delivery access and solutions are being considered to resolve these. 

2.2.3 Cycling (update) 

 There are a number of initiatives/projects currently underway for cycling.  Annex 
1 provides an update on each.  

 Following changes to the way we deliver road safety services staff in the former 
Road Safety Team are now actively engaged in reviewing cycle schemes at a 
formative stage and are assisting in the development of the county’s emerging 
Local Cycling and Walking Investment Plan. 

2.2.4 Public Transport (update) 

 A new commercial service run by Stagecoach West is now being operated out of 
Arle Court Park and Ride site.  The service receives no subsidies from the 
County Council.  Work continues on the project to implement parking restrictions 
at the site to free up capacity for growth in the bus service and to bring in 
revenue from parking. 

Page 14



 Community transport providers have expressed concerns over proposed 
changes to guidance around sections 19 and 22 of the Transport Act to be 
brought in by the Government following a court case.  County Council officers are 
working closely with the providers to minimise any impact on service users, while 
monitoring the Government’s position.  The cost per journey for community 
transport has increased slightly for quarter 1, due to a fall in passenger numbers. 

 As is expected for this time of year, there have been many changes to the public 
transport network.  One change was centered on Dursley; Stagecoach reduced 
their provision for the area which has lead to local concerns.  This was a 
commercial decision by the operator and not due to any action by the Council.  
Discussions with the local community are continuing. 

 Contracts for services 351, 353, 6, 13, 71, 113, 66S and 66F (now 113B) were all 
retendered as the previous versions came to an end (or in the case of 351/353 
were handed back by the operator).  All were won by Stagecoach at increased 
cost to the Council. 

2.2.5 Commons and Rights of Way (CROW) Committee 

 Deregulation Act (update) 
o In response to a parliamentary question on 23 April 2018, commencement 

of the Rights of Way provisions contained within the 2015 Deregulation Act 
will be “in the first half of 2019, subject to parliamentary time”. 

 Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs, update) 
o The ‘made’ Order has been published for a s26 creation at Lechlade. 
o The Order has been published for the DMMO application at Claymeadow 

Farm. 
o It is proposed to take 1 application to the next CROW Committee in 

October, and another to the Internal Panel. 
o Dedication agreement now completed for an additional length of the former 

Tetbury to Kemble railway to become a public bridleway between Long 
Newnton and the Trouble House (subject of a DMMO claim). 

o There was an appeal to the Secretary of State against the CROW 
Committee decision for the Henley Road application.  The Council’s 
submission into the appeal process has been made and the Inspector’s 
decision is expected in the next 6 months or so. 

2.2.6 Staff Travel (update) 

 On 24th April we launched our staff pool car scheme with Enterprise Car Club. 
This is also open to elected Members.  The rate of take-up to date has exceeded 
that seen by Enterprise in any of its other schemes in the country.  By 21st 
August over 370 staff had registered as users, with over 5,500 miles travelled in 
the electric, hybrid and low emission cars in July. 

 Other measures to encourage sustainable travel are being progressed, including 
the use of smart travel cards for local bus trips and trialing electric bike trials that 
can help you go further, faster.  

3 Infrastructure and Major Projects   

3.1 Major Transport Projects 
3.1.1 Major Schemes 

 A417 Missing Link (update) 
o The public consultation finished on 29 March.  Information regarding the 

consultation can be found here. 

Page 15

https://highwaysengland.citizenspace.com/he/a417-missing-link/


o Nearly 2,000 responses were received from people/ organisations, which is 
an extremely good response rate for Highways England, with the majority 
supporting Option 30, the Highways England preferred option. 

o The next step is for Highways England to make a formal ‘Preferred Route 
Announcement’ (PRA), which it will do early in 2019.  The PRA had been 
scheduled for autumn 2018, but has been delayed due to an 
announcement that the A417 Missing Link scheme is now a Tier 1 scheme, 
which means that central government takes a greater interest in the 
scheme development process.   

o The various working groups have been established and have now met 
twice, to cover more detailed technical aspects of the scheme.  County 
Council officers sit on all 4 of these groups. 

o It is important to keep lobbying for the scheme, as announcements for the 
next Road Investment Strategy (RIS2) will be made over the next year. 

 Cinderford Spine Road (update) 
o Construction works for Phase One of the road have now been completed; 

Snagging and defect work due for completion in August 2018. 
o Additional ecological trapping has been completed (delayed by 3 months 

by continued dry weather). 

 Elmbridge (update) 
o Final account and outstanding Contractor payments agreed.  Completed 

snagging and defects list agreed. 
o The next phase of the Elmbridge Transport Scheme (Arle Court) has 

commenced construction 
o Arle Court: 

 Contractors Griffiths are now on site. 
 Works completion scheduled for the end of August 2018. 
 Fortnightly Bulletins being issued by the contractor to keep 

interested parties up to date. 
o A40 Over Roundabout: 

 Contractors Britannia are now on site. 
 Closures were in place over the weekends of the 4th August and 11th 

August for resurfacing the roundabout.  Full details of the closures 
are available to the public on the A40 Over Webpage.  The forecast 
of bad weather resulted in an additional day of closure on the third 
weekend to complete the resurfacing. 

 Night time sheet piling was completed at the start of July. 
 Works completion scheduled for the start of September 2018. 
 Fortnightly Bulletins being issued by the contractor to keep 

interested parties up to date. 
o Metz Way: 

 Contract awarded to North Midland Construction Plc. 
 Work Started on Site in July at the Metz Way/ Eastern Avenue 

Junction. 
 A series of Night Time Closures will be in place over August and 

September to accommodate resurfacing and other works. 

 Cross Keys roundabout (update) 
o The County Council has been awarded £2.7 million Government funding 

for improvements to the Cross Keys roundabout at the junction of the A38 
and B4008, just north of junction 12 of the M5.  Works include new traffic 
lights on the A38, widening the approach lanes of the roundabout and 
enhancing conditions for buses and cyclists.  The scheme will cost 

Page 16



£3.851m; the remaining money will be made up of section 106 funding, 
developer contributions and the County Council’s highways budget.   

o Continued progression with detailed design. 
o Public share events planned for September/October 2018. 
o Design completion programmed for November 2018, procurement 

completion in February 2019, with construction start aimed at April/ May 
2019. 

3.1.2 Local Growth Fund (update) 

 The initial £62.5m Growth Deal funding was announced in July 2014.  This 
included £14.1M major tail-end funding, now reduced to £9.07m to be paid 
directly from the Department for Transport (DfT) to the promoter; this is for the 
Elmbridge Roundabout Scheme.  A further £15M of Growth Deal funding was 
announced in January 2015 and in February 2017, a further £29.13 million was 
secured in the third round of Growth Deal funding for the following projects: 

o Longford Housing – £4.53 million 
o Cyber Business Park – £22 million 
o Gloucestershire College Forest of Dean Campus – £2.6 million 

 In addition to the major tail-end funding allocation (see above), £52,907,000 of 
the total Growth Deal allocation for Gloucestershire is allocated to the following 
transport-related schemes: 

Scheme 
Allocation 

£’000 
Indicative LEP Board 
decision date Promoter 

A419 corridor 4,360 10/10/2017 - approved Gloucestershire County Council  

Lydney strategy 1,000 04/12/2018 Gloucestershire County Council  

Berkeley bridges 1,990 15/12/2015 - approved Gloucestershire County Council  

Cinderford Northern Qtr 3,800 15/12/2015 - approved Gloucestershire County Council  

Glos South West 
Bypass 

2,000 20/02/2018 - approved Gloucestershire County Council  

St Barnabas 
Roundabout 

1,000 Q4 2018/19 Gloucestershire County Council  

B4063 Junction 1,600 Q4 2018/19 Gloucestershire County Council  

A40 Over Rnd & 
Highnam 

2,230 13/12/2016 - approved Gloucestershire County Council  

Abbeymead / Metz Way 500 04/10/2016 - approved Gloucestershire County Council  

Gloucester Transport 
Hub 

6,400 16/02/2016 - approved Gloucester City Council  

Cheltenham Spa 
Railway 

1,497 12/12/2017 approved Great Western Railway 

Longford Housing 4,530 02/07/2019 Tewkesbury Borough Council 

Cheltenham Cyber Park 22,000 tbc Cheltenham Borough Council 

Total Transport 52,907   

 
3.1.3 Capital Programme, 2018/19 (update) 

 Delivery of the 2018/19 programme is progressing well and we are currently on 
target to spend the planned £51M in-year.  There are some concerns over 
unavoidable anticipated budget pressures in some individual areas of the service, 
most significantly with regard to bridges where an overspend of £335k is 
anticipated.  This is due to the cost of repairing the Donnington Brewery Bridge 
that failed last year and the Horsbere Culvert (under the link between Elmbridge 
Court and C&G Roundabouts) that needs urgent and major work. 

 These overspends are likely to be offset by delays to other schemes that tend to 
manifest themselves as they move towards construction.  Whilst we have 
received assurances that the programme won’t be disrupted by the transfer of the 

Page 17



Highways contract from Amey to a new contractor, there remains a risk.  In 
addition the hot weather through the summer has been disrupting some 
construction processes nationally, such as surface dressing of carriageways, 
which has meant that the supplier has yet to reach Gloucestershire to deliver the 
dressing programme.  This work must be completed before low temperatures 
commence. 

 As Amey has handed back most of the carriageway surfacing and patching 
programme we have had to refocus delivery on larger schemes that are more in 
line with the Tarmac contract.  This may mean that some small local surfacing 
projects are delayed until the new Highways Term Contract comes into effect. 

 Longer term liabilities remain a concern; in particular the condition of the county’s 
bridge and traffic signal stocks, and the long term need to address several major 
landslips affecting the network. 

3.1.4 Highways England (HE, update) 

 Housing Infrastructure Fund.  The Government announced a new £2.3bn fund for 
local authorities and District Councils to bid to, to deliver new infrastructure to 
support new and existing communities. 

o The County Council has entered the ‘co-development’ stage with Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to develop the 
business case for the £249M M5 Junction 10 package of measures.  
Guidance has now been received and the Council will submit an Outline 
Business Case to MHCLG on 1 March 2019. 

o This is still a competitive process with no guarantee that the Council will be 
successful.  Decisions will be made by MHCLG in May 2019. 

o Construction needs to be completed by April 2022. 

 The Government released information regarding a ‘Transforming Cities’ fund – 
aimed at ‘city regions’ with a working day population of >200k, and with the aim 
of improving public and sustainable transport connectivity.  The County Council 
submitted a bid to the fund on 8 June.  The bid focuses on the Central Severn 
Vale area of the county, primarily aimed at improving the public transport offer, 
and other sustainable transport measures.  At this stage the DfT does not want a 
list of schemes – that will be developed if the Council is invited to the ‘co-
development’ stage.  We are still awaiting announcement by Government of the 
successful bid authorities. 

3.1.5 Great Western Rail Franchise (update) 

 The Government ran a consultation, asking for views on proposals for improving 
train services on the Great Western rail network from April 2020.  The Great 
Western franchise could be split up and the plans, if implemented, would create a 
new West of England rail franchise.  County Council officers submitted an officer-
level response to meet the deadline of 21st February 2018, which has been 
shared with members of this Committee.   

 The DfT has decided not to split the franchise in the face of overwhelming 
opposition.  No other feedback from the DfT has been received. 

3.2 Planning 
3.2.1 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 (S106) Agreements (update) 

 Within Gloucestershire, progress on District Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Charging Schedules is as set out in Annex 2.   

 The County Council continues to work with the CIL Charging Authorities to 
support on governance arrangements, CIL preparation and administration.  The 
Joint Core Strategy (JCS) CIL Charging Schedules have recently been though 
the formal examination process (15-17 May), and received the Examiner’s Report 

Page 18



in August.  The JCS Authorities are now progressing towards implementation and 
the County Council is involved in this process. 

 At Gloucestershire County Council, the financial contributions that arise through 
S106 Planning Agreements, agreed with developers to mitigate against the 
specific impacts of a particular development, relate mainly to strategic 
infrastructure, such as highways and transportation, schools and libraries.  Annex 
3 shows the quarterly statistics for S106 contributions agreed, due and received. 

 The Government is consulting on changes to developer contributions to support 
the delivery of housing.  County Council officers have provided an officer 
response. 

3.2.2 Joint Core Strategy (JCS, no change) 

 Following receipt of the Inspector’s final report, all three of the JCS authorities 
have now adopted the JCS.  It is anticipated that the JCS will be immediately 
reviewed, starting in 2018.  

3.2.3 Highways Development Management (HDM, no change) 

 We are going through a process to recruit to vacant and new positions.  We are 
also working with districts to develop planning performance agreements (PPAs), 
to provide developers with more certainty about the timescales for assessing 
larger applications, mainly in Cheltenham and Gloucester.  A workshop is 
planned with districts, Amey and Legal services to understand how we can make 
best use of PPAs to speed up the delivery of new development in 
Gloucestershire. 

 Since 2012/13 the County Council, as Local Highway Authority (LHA), has 
provided LPAs with standing advice for assessing the transport impact of 
developments of up to five dwellings on minor (mostly residential) and ‘C’ class 
roads where the speed limit is 30mph or less.  The HDM team offers support 
guidance and training to LPAs to assist them with understanding how to apply 
standing advice effectively. 

 Since October 2016, for larger and more complex applications, the County 
Council has also been providing LPAs with summary sheets with an overview of 
the main transport issues, concerns and recommendations.  We have asked 
LPAs to provide copies of these summaries to their members and to include them 
in their reports to planning committee. 

3.2.4 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF, update) 

 Government recently consulted on changes to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF).  County Council officers submitted a response and shared it 
with Committee members.  The revised NPPF was published on 24th July 2018. 

3.2.5 Western Gateway Sub-National Transport Body (new item) 

 Strategic transport interventions play a fundamental role in driving economic 
growth.  They facilitate the development of housing and employment space; 
improve connectivity between business and skilled people and improve 
connectivity between businesses.  Local Transport Authorities across England 
are responding to Government’s request for more strategic thinking about 
transport investment priorities to improve regional productivity and sustainable 
economic growth by forming regional groupings known as Sub-National 
Transport Bodies (SNTB).  

 Government is open to SNTBs forming across more functional economic 
geographies rather than being constrained by historic administrative boundaries.  
Gloucestershire County Council officers have been working with other local 
authorities within South West England to form a SNTB based on existing travel to 

Page 19



work patterns.  The inaugural meeting of the prospective Western Gateway 
SNTB will meet on the 28th September 2018.  The aim of the SNTB is to identify 
and agree which strategic transport interventions are required to drive economic 
growth across the perspective Western Gateway to be able to respond to future 
calls for the prioritisation for Major Road Network schemes in the region. 

 Subject to agreement by the Western Gateway partners, a request will be made
to Government for funding to support the process of establishing the Western
Gateway shadow SNTB and provide operating costs to produce a robust
transport strategy.

3.3 Waste 
3.3.1 Joint Waste Committee (update) 

 The recycling rate for 2018/19 is forecast as 50%; more detail is provided in
Annex 4.

 Work is underway to establish the costs of direct delivery and transfer options for
moving waste to Javelin Park in 2019.  The results of this work will be used to
inform Cabinet in the autumn, when a decision will be taken on which option to
proceed with.  Tenders for waste transfer were returned on 28th August and are
being evaluated.

 A project to replace the aging and unreliable waste compaction equipment at the
HRCs is ongoing. This will introduce new mobile compaction equipment to the
sites, initially at Hempsted and Pyke Quarry, and will provide reliability and
flexibility for the operations at these sites.  Associated ground repairs will take
place at the same time to provide a safer working environment.  Installation at
Pyke Quarry was completed on time (during July), with works scheduled to
commence at Hempsted in late October.

 A review of HRC opening hours has been completed.  A Lead Cabinet Member 
decision on what changes will be adopted was made in August.  Winter and 
summer opening hours will be reduced from 09:00-18:15 to 10:00-16:00 winter 
and 09:00-17:00 summer.  Sites will also close for one mid-week day per week 
throughout the year.

 Work is underway to re-procure HRC wood collection and recycling service
following the recent termination of the existing contract.

3.3.2 Residual Waste Project (update) 

 The project continues to make good progress.

 A significant amount of the process equipment has now been installed on site.
The erection of the steel framework is ongoing, the steelwork over the bunker is
complete and that over the turbine hall is underway.  Cladding is progressing
well, with the majority of the incinerator bottom ash treatment hall now clad and
being installed on the admin building and bunker.

 Work continues to weld the boiler panels together prior to the pressure test; one
of the quality assurance measures designed to ensure that the boiler is
manufactured to the highest quality standards.

 The fire water tank has been constructed and the foundations for the
weighbridges have commenced.

 Site operations and Health and Safety continue to a high standard.

 The Community Liaison Group met in May to discuss the project.  Minutes of the
Group’s meetings can be found here.

Page 20

https://www.ubbgloucestershire.co.uk/community-liaison-group/
https://www.ubbgloucestershire.co.uk/community-liaison-group/


4 Minerals and Waste Planning 

4.1 Minerals Local Plan (MLP, no change) 

 On the 31st May 2018 the MLP was published for public inspection for a period of
6 weeks – ending on 13th July 2018.  This engagement exercise provides the 
final opportunity for interested parties (including the public) to consider and 
express their views on the MLP.  Representations must be tightly focused on 
whether the plan is considered to be ‘legally complaint’ and/or ‘sound’. 
Soundness represents the collective judgement of whether the plan: has been 
positively prepared; is justified; will be effective; and is consistent with national 
policy.  The County Council is unable to make changes to the plan at this stage 
and can simply note the representations made and consider what possible (if 
any) changes it might be willing to investigate further. 

 The next stage for the MLP is submission to the Secretary of State (SoS) for the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG).  All
representations made between the end of May and July 2018 must also be
submitted at this time.  The SoS will then appoint an Inspector (from the Planning
Inspectorate (PINS)) to review the plan and the comments made as part of an
Independent Examination.  This exercise is likely to include public hearing
sessions to allow further detailed discussion of points raised and to debate what
(if any) options are acceptable to resolve issues.  County Council officers will be
involved in all public hearing sessions.

 The County Council aims to submit the MLP by the end of September 2018.  The
Independent Examination may commence towards the end of 2018 and be
completed in early 2019.

 If the MLP successfully passes through the Independent Examination, the County
Council will be able to proceed to adoption.  This could occur at some point in
early/ mid-2019.

5 Community Resilience 

5.1 Carbon Reduction Programme (update) 

 The Council has a target to reduce carbon emissions from its estate by 60% by
2020/21 against the 2006/07 baseline.

 Emissions for the corporate estate (reported a quarter in arrears) continue to be
significantly ahead of target; 14.9% reduction for 2017/18 on 2016/17 levels.  The
Council has now more than halved its corporate emissions over the past 11 years
and is significantly ahead of target to reduce emissions by 60% by 2020/21,
against the 2006/07 baseline.  Emissions have reduced by 55% from 26,800
tCO2e in 2006/07 to 12,100 tCO2e in 2016/17; a reduction of almost 14,800
tCO2e.

 Renewable energy generation on the Council's estate remains limited, with solar
PV on The Main Place, Coleford and Cirencester Fire Station.  Solar PV is being
installed on the roof of Shire Hall as part of the refurbishment.  Officers are
working to ensure the installation remains eligible for the Feed-in Tariff, which
Government proposes to close to new applications after 31st March 2019.  The
installation is expected to be fully commissioned by autumn 2019, with estimated
CO2 savings of up to 400 tonnes per annum.  Options for further investment
across the estate are being investigated.

Page 21



5.2 Adaptation and Resilience 
5.2.1 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 

 Delivering Sustainable Drainage Systems (update):
o Gloucestershire County Council, as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA),

has a statutory duty to provide substantive responses within 21 days to
consultation referrals received from the Local Planning Authority regarding
developer’s proposals for the management of surface water on major
planning applications.

o During the period 1st April 2018 to 30th June 2018 the LLFA received 53
referrals from the Local Planning Authorities and responded to 100% of the
major planning application referrals within the 21 day response deadline.

o In the same period, in addition to the work required to provide advice on
planning applications and discharge of conditions, officers have also had to
deal with 11 requests for pre-application.

 Flood Alleviation Schemes (no change)
o Work is progressing well at Priors/Oakley, northwest of Cheltenham on a

flood alleviation scheme designed to reduce the risk of flooding to 179
properties.  The scheme comprises two surface water attenuation basins
and a number of channel diversions and improvements to watercourses on
the Noverton Farm and Priors Farm sites.  It involves holding back surface
water running off the Cleeve escarpment before releasing it back into the
existing watercourses at a controlled rate.  The nature of the scheme will
mean that existing land uses can continue after completion and minimise
the impact on landowners and the local community.  The scheme is
expected to be completed by October, weather permitting.

o Investigations are ongoing at Brockworth and Churchdown to assess the
number of properties at risk of flooding and the viability of installing
property level protection.  Threshold surveys have been undertaken to
refine and verify our flood model data.  The next stage will be to consult
residents and then carry out a technical survey during the summer with a
view to installation in 2019 subject to funding approval from Defra.

5.2.2 Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (LNP, update) 

 The LNP partnership last met on 12th July 2018.  The full membership
participated in a workshop to derive a joint LNP response on the County’s 2050
Vision, which has been submitted.  It was felt that, amongst other things, the
vision is missing a sustainable concept to solve transport issues and reduce the
need to travel by car, as well as to embrace Cyber and provide more green
infrastructure and resilient ecosystems, on which we all depend.

 The new Chair is to be Doug Hulyer and the first LNP Manager is Jackie Jobes
who has now commenced work, including arranging the first LNP Conference on
Green Infrastructure on the 26th October.

 European Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF)
o Two schemes submitted in the second round have been accepted and are

now working up full proposals.  Both of these would have County Council
involvement if they go ahead; i.e. using funds for highways and PRoW
improvements to bring in match funding for green infrastructure and
ecological enhancement.  Projects involve works on the Gloucester/
Sharpness Canal (County Council leading) and Market Towns
(Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust leading).

Page 22



5.2.3 National Adaptation Programme (NAP, update) 

 The Climate Change Act (CCA) 2008 put in place a policy framework to promote
adaptation action in the UK consisting of:

 The UK Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA) is a five-yearly assessment of
the major risks and opportunities from climate change to the UK, published in
2012 and 2017.  The Adaptation Sub-Committee (ASC) of the Committee on
Climate Change has a duty to advise Government on the preparation of the UK
Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA).

o The National Adaptation Programme (NAP) is the Government’s long-term
strategy to address the main risks and opportunities identified in the
CCRA, also produced every five years; the first was published in 2013.
The second NAP (2018 to 2023) was published in July; “The National
Adaptation Programme and the Third Strategy for Climate Adaptation
Reporting”.  Chapter 6: Local government, is attached as Annex 5.

o The UK Adaptation Reporting Power grants the Secretary of State the
power to require public service organisations to produce reports on what
they are doing to adapt to climate change.  A consultation on the
Government’s proposed strategy for the third round of the climate change
Adaptation Reporting Power was conducted in Feb/Mar; the second NAP
states that “In view of the ongoing discussions with reporting organisations
on their involvement, we will publish a list of participating organisations by
the end of 2018”.  Councils are currently not required to report; this is not
expected to change.

5.2.4 The Local Adaptation Advisory Panel (LAAP) for England (update) 

 The LAAP, chaired by the Council’s Commissioning Director, Communities &
Infrastructure, acts as an efficient forum for dialogue between local Government,
central Government and arms length delivery bodies.

o The LAAP met in July to continue looking at how to encourage local
authorities to take action, together with what a ‘good’ local authority looks
like.

6 Community Resources and Partnership Projects 

6.1 GlosCol RFD Campus Cinderford (no change) 

 Plans to establish a high quality further education and training facility in
Cinderford’s Northern Quarter are continuing to progress and the College is
scheduled to open in September 2018.

6.2 Gloucester and Sharpness Canal (update) 

 The County Council submitted a European Structural and Investment Fund
(ESIF) Outline Application Form for funding to support the improvement and
upgrade of canal tow paths in and around Gloucester, on the 10th November.
The full ESIF business case was submitted on the 14th July 2018, with a decision
expected on the outcome in early 2019.

 S106 monies from the Kingsway development have been secured for £508k
(which could increase further depending on the rate of development).

 An application for a Gloucestershire Environmental Trust Grant of £200k was
submitted in December 2017 and notification of a successful bid was made in
April 2018.

 There are two sections of canal towpath upgrade being proposed:
1) Approx. 2.7km from High Orchard Bridge to Sims Bridge
2) Approx. 2.9km from Sims Bridge to The Pilot Public House

Page 23

https://www.theccc.org.uk/tackling-climate-change/the-legal-landscape/the-climate-change-act/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-climate-change-risk-assessment-government-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-climate-change-risk-assessment-2017
https://www.theccc.org.uk/about/structure-and-governance/asc-members/
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/adapting-to-climate-change/supporting-pages/national-adaptation-programme
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adapting-to-climate-change-national-adaptation-programme
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/climate-change-second-national-adaptation-programme-2018-to-2023
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/climate-change-second-national-adaptation-programme-2018-to-2023
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/climate-change-second-national-adaptation-programme-2018-to-2023
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/adapting-to-climate-change/supporting-pages/adaptation-reporting-power


 The first phase of work (funded by the £508k of S106 Contributions) is currently
programmed to start in August 2018 and will also include a short section of the
phase 2 works from Simms Lane Bridge to Elmore Lane West (funded by the
£200k GET contribution).  The works have received Cabinet approval and a
press release has been sent out.

6.3 Gloucester Transport Hub (was Gloucester Bus Station, update) 

 Funding has been secured from the GFirst LEP.

 Britannia was appointed Contractor for the Highway Works following an open
tender process, with the City Council acting as Employer under the contract.

 Construction works are complete on the highway scheme.

 Work is currently underway progressing additional Traffic Regulation Orders
required to formalise the parking restrictions on Market Parade and prevent
motorists from entering Bruton Way Spur in the wrong direction.  Formal
advertising began in August 2018 and it is expected these orders will be
implemented in autumn 2018.

 Kier was appointed by Gloucester City Council to take forward the design and
build the new Bus Station.  Kier have installed the steel frame structure and work
is underway to complete the remaining building works before the new bus station
formally opens in late October 2018.

6.4 Libraries 
6.4.1 Stonehouse Library relocation (update) 

 Discussions are now advancing and a layout has been agreed.  Stonehouse
Town Council is considering the length of any lease to the County Council, which
needs to be agreed before any public consultation goes ahead.  The consultation
is likely to take place in the autumn.

6.4.2 Nailsworth Library (update) 

 Nailsworth Town Council is still in conversation with the Library about moving the
Town Council offer into the library building.  There has been some delay due to
their need to engage with their volunteers.

6.4.3 Dursley Library (new item) 

 The Council has also been approached by Dursley Town Council to operate a
Tourist Information Centre on its behalf in the library.  Options are currently being
investigated.

6.5 ROBUST (Rural-Urban Outlooks – Unlocking Synergies) project (update) 

 ROBUST is a European research project being delivered by a consortium of 24
research institutes, local and regional authorities.  The overall goal is to:

a) Advance our understanding of the interactions and dependencies between
rural, peri-urban and urban areas; and

b) Identify and promote policies, governance models and practices that foster
mutually beneficial relations. Improved governance arrangements and
synergies between rural, peri-urban and urban areas will in turn contribute
to Europe’s smart sustainable and inclusive growth, maximising the
creation of rural jobs and value-added.

 Gloucestershire is one of the settings for the research, and Gloucestershire
County Council and the University of Gloucestershire’s Countryside and
Community Research Institute are amongst the partners in the consortium.  The
project receives funding from the European Union’s Horizon 2020 research and
innovation programme and will run for four years from June 2017. The UK
Government has recently launched the Industrial Strategy which acknowledges

Page 24



the importance and value of the UK’s collaboration with partners in the Horizon 
2020 programme. 

 A small focus group involving policy partners and key stakeholders was held in
Gloucester on 8 June 2018.  The aim of this group was to inform the future work
of the project and to test the terms and concepts proposed for use as part of the
ROBUST analytical framework.

7 Quarterly Performance Update 

7.1 Q1 2018/19 (new item) 

 Key service information reported to Lead Cabinet Members for Quarter 4 2017/18 
has been covered in this report, with the scorecard attached as Annex 6.  There 
are 26 indicators; 8 are ahead of target, 13 are on target, 2 are off target, 1 of 
these is addressed in this report and listed below:

o Parking & Passenger Transport
 Cost per journey (community transport journeys)

 Performance information relating to the portfolio of services provided by the
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service on behalf of the County Council is
detailed in the Chief Fire Officer’s report, which includes 1 of the off target
indicators:

o Trading Standards
 Number of complaints/ reports of scam activity against vulnerable

individuals

Contact Officer 
Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities & Infrastructure 
nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470 

Page 25

mailto:nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk


ANNEX 1: CYCLING UPDATE 
Updates on the cycling initiatives/projects currently underway are set out below: 

Initiative/ 
Scheme 

Update 

Transforming 
Cities Fund 

The Government has announced, as part of the Autumn Budget 2017, the 
creation of the £1.7bn Transforming Cities Fund.  The aim of the Fund is to 
invest in new local transport infrastructure to boost productivity by improving 
public and sustainable transport connectivity. 

Gloucestershire County Council submitted a bid on 8 June 2018.  The bid is 
centred around the Central Severn Vale (CSV) area, where the majority of 
growth will take place up until 2031.  A work day population of over 235K has 
been identified for the CSV, which is above the fund’s qualifying criterion of 
>200K population. 

The bid focuses on enhancing the public transport offer through measures such 
as bus priority, enhanced ticketing and new Euro VI vehicles.  This will be 
supported by enhancements for cycling and walking.  At this stage the 
Department for Transport does not want a list of schemes; this will be worked 
up if the Council is successful and is invited to the next stage of ‘co-
development’. 

Capital 
programme/ 
s106 

 

The County Council has a capital programme for scheme delivery, some of 
which is allocated for cycling schemes.  The following schemes have funding 
allocated for 2018/2019: 

2018/19 Schemes 

 Northway Lane, Tewkesbury Cycletrack:  Shared use footway/cycleway. 
Land Acquisition has now been completed and work is now subject to 
appropriate funding becoming available in a future financial year. 

 Gloucester Canal Towpath:  Upgrading the Canal Towpath between 
Gloucester and Hardwicke.  The first phase of works is being programmed 
with the Canal and River Trust, which will deliver works between Monk 
Meadow and Elmore Lane West.  Additional funding sources are being 
sought to deliver a subsequent phase of works in 2019.   

 Bishops Cleeve to Tewkesbury Cycle Signing: cycle signing improvements. 
Design complete, delivery programmed for Autumn/Winter 2018. 

 Bishops Cleeve Cycle Parking – Cycle stand location design underway and 
consultation with affected stakeholders, works programmed for October 
2018. 

 Bishops Cleeve to Cheltenham Cycle Improvements: Provision of new 
shared use cycleway parallel to A435.  Design and landowner negotiations 
underway 

 Pittville to The Park Student Cycle Route:  Cycle signing improvements 
Route investigation undertaken, detailed design now underway. 

 Lydney Transport Strategy:  Create and enhance cycle provision to improve 
connectivity in Lydney.  LEP Funded scheme and business case being 
prepared, if successful could be delivered in 2019/20. 

 Developer funded improvements to the Highnam Cycletrack 

 Longford Cycle Improvements – early stage review of route options. 

Page 26



Initiative/ 
Scheme 

Update 

Highways 
England (HE) – 
Strategic Road 
Network barriers 

On July 2nd 2018, Highways England led a workshop with Council officers 
where HE provided further details on their proposals to undertake improvements 
to cycle provision between Gloucester and Cheltenham (extending from Benhall 
Roundabout in Cheltenham to the end of London Road in Gloucester passing 
through Churchdown and Longlevens), and initial preliminary designs for 
specific locations were tabled and comments sought. 

At present, HE are continuing the process of data collection and survey work, 
and their intention remains to complete the design by March 2019 - 
acknowledging that this will be driven by survey findings and the requirements 
for public consultations etc.  Similarly, the proposed procurement and 
construction will be driven by contract requirements and the mechanism chosen 
for implementation, but is programmed for April 2019-March 2020. 

Cycling and 
Walking 
Investment 
Strategy (CWIS) 

Work is underway on the production of the first phase of the County’s Local 
Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP). 

The first phase will focus on the Central Severn Vale area and is programmed 
for completion by Autumn 2018.  This will enable the plan to form part of the 
wider Local Transport Plan review process,  

In terms of cycling we intend to identify and prioritise the removal of barriers for 
cycle movements under the following categories: 

 Primary: High flows of cyclists are forecast along desire lines that link large 
residential areas to trip attractors such as a town or city centre. 

 Secondary: Medium flows of cyclists are forecast along desire lines that link 
to trip attractors such as schools, colleges and employment sites. 

 Local: Lower flows of cyclists are forecast along desire lines that cater for 
local cycle trips, often providing links to primary or secondary desire lines. 

In terms of walking we intend to prioritise improvements the removal of barriers 
for cycle movements under the following categories: 

 Primary: High flows of cyclists are forecast along desire lines that link large 
residential areas to trip attractors such as a town or city centre. 

 Secondary: Medium flows of cyclists are forecast along desire lines that link 
to trip attractors such as schools, colleges and employment sites. 

 Local: Lower flows of cyclists are forecast along desire lines that cater for 
local cycle trips, often providing links to primary or secondary desire lines. 

The Government-funded consultancy support will enable stakeholder 
engagement, network audits and technical workshops to be undertaken. 

Gloucestershire 
County Council 
Travel Plan 

 

The County Council’s Travel Plan for the Shire Hall Complex has been 
developed as part of the NUS Green Impact project, which aims to support, 
recognise and accredit organisations for supporting actions on sustainability.  
The Travel Plan also supplements the ongoing brand of Thinktravel, which was 
developed under, the now ended Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) 
programme aimed at encouraging and promoting sustainable travel within 
Gloucestershire.   

The intention was for the travel plan to be adopted by Corporate Management 
Team (CoMT) in February 2016 but this has been delayed due to the ongoing 
changes likely with car parking in relation to the Blackfriars development works 
and Quayside redevelopment.  

An officer working group has been established to take this forward.  

The ‘Thinktravel’ website continues to promote and support cycling see 
https://www.thinktravel.info/  

Page 27

https://www.thinktravel.info/


Initiative/ 
Scheme 

Update 

LTP-Cycle and 
Think travel 
strategies 

LTP was adopted at Full Council on 29 June 2016.  The plan will be reviewed in 
2018/19, including a revised cycle strategy. 

Cycle liaison 
group update 

Cycle liaison group last met on 18th June 2018. 

Cycle 
Champions 

The cross-party Cycling Advisory Group last met on 2nd July 2018. 

 

 

 
  

Page 28



ANNEX 2: Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
The table below shows progress on District CIL Charging Schedules. 
 

Local 
Authority 

PDCS 
Consultation 

DCS 
Consultation 

Proposed rates Next steps 

Stroud DC Feb 2014 April – Jun 
2016 

Resi1: £80/Sqm 

Retail2: £75/Sqm 

Adopted and 
effective as of Apr 
2017 

Gloucester 
City Council 

May – Jul 
2015 

May – Jun 
2016 

Resi: 

1-10 units: £0/Sqm 

11+ units: £45/Sqm 

Strategic Sites1: 
£variable but 
generally £35/Sqm 

Out-of-Town retail: 
£100/Sqm 

Following a further 
consultation to align 
the DCS with the 
JCS changes in Jul-
Sep 2017, the 

Charging Schedule has 
progressed to: 

Examination: May 
2018  

Inspector’s Report 
July 2018 

Adoption: Autumn 
2018  

Implementation: 
From late 2018/ early 
2019 

Cheltenham 
BC 

May – Jul 
2015 

May – Jun 
2016 

Resi: 

1-10 units: £148/Sqm 

11+ units: £200/Sqm 

Strategic Sites1: 
£variable but 
generally £35/Sqm 

Retirement Homes: 
£200/Sqm 

Extra Care Homes: 
£100/Sqm 

Out-of-Town retail: 
£100/Sqm 

Following a further 
consultation to align 
the DCS with the 
JCS Jul-Sep 2017, 
the Charging 
Schedule has 
progressed to: 

Examination: May 
2018  

Inspector’s Report 
July 2018 

Adoption: Autumn 
2018 

Implementation: 
From late 2018/ early 
2019 

Tewkesbury 
BC 

May – Jul 
2015 

May – Jun 
2016 

Resi: 

1-10 units: £104/Sqm 

11+ units: £200/Sqm 

Strategic Sites1: 
£variable but 

Following a further 
consultation to align 
the DCS with the 
JCS Jul-Sep 2017, 
the Charging 
Schedule has 

Page 29



Local 
Authority 

PDCS 
Consultation 

DCS 
Consultation 

Proposed rates Next steps 

generally £35/Sqm 

Out-of-Town retail: 
£100/Sqm 

progressed to: 

Examination: May 
2018 

Inspector’s Report 
July 2018 

Adoption: Autumn 
2018 

Implementation: 
From late 2018/ early 
2019 

Cotswold 
DC 

Published for 
consultation 
Jun - Aug 
2016 

Oct 2016 Resi1: £80/Sqm 

Retail3: £60/Sqm 

Examination: Dec 
2017 

Adoption: 2018  

Implementation 2019 

Forest of 
Dean DC 

Not yet 
published 

  The Forest of Dean 
DC Cabinet resolved 
in Apr 2015 to 
support the 
development of a 
potential CIL in the 
District when 
resources are 
available.   

Notes: 
1) Strategic sites are excluded from CIL charge as infrastructure will most likely be secured 

through S106. 
2) Supermarkets and retail warehouses 

3) All retail  

Page 30



ANNEX 3: Section 106 Planning Quarterly Contributions 
 
The tables below show the quarterly statistics for S106 contributions agreed, due and 
received. 

Negotiated Financial Contributions – Table 1 

Overview: 

 Table 1 details the number of S106 Planning Agreements/Unilateral 
Undertakings signed and total contributions negotiated and agreed to support the 
provision of highways, education & libraries infrastructure in Gloucestershire per 
quarter. 

 These contributions will only become due to the County Council on 
implementation of the planning permission and respective trigger dates as 
detailed in individual agreements. 

 The signed agreements include those with a valid planning consent as well as 
those that are subject to appeal.  For example; the headline figure in Q3 (October 
2015 – December 2015) included the Leckhampton (Shurdington Road, 650 
dwellings) development/agreement, with a negotiated value of over £6.5m, which 
was dismissed on appeal.  In Q4 (January 2016 – March 2016), the 
Leckhampton (Farm Lane, 377 dwellings) development/agreement with a 
negotiated value of £2,728,142.00 was allowed on appeal. 

Latest Analysis Q1 – 2018/19: 

 There are only 2 agreements in this quarter one of which has full planning  
permission with £364k agreed towards Highways/ Cycleway/ Footway works and 
the other has outline planning permission with Library and Primary contributions 
agreed. 

Table 1: 

2015/2016 No. of Agreements  
Signed 

Total Value 
Negotiated  

Q1 April - June 11 £1,935,109.45 

Q2 July - September 10 £1,574,110.00 

Q3 October - December 7 £8,327,342.00 

Q4 January - March 15 £8,216,894.00 

2016/2017   

Q1 April – June  11 £1,737,570.00 

Q2 July - September 11 £2,234,717.00 

Q3 October -December 6 £1,246,812.00 

Q4 January – March 3 £1,437,439.00 

2017/2018   

Q1 April – June 11 £4,117,000.00 

Q2 July - September 17 £15,641,000.00 

Q3 – October - 
December 

10 £3,746,880.00 

Q4 – January – March  2 £429,580.00 

Quarters 2018/2019   

Q1 – April – June  2 £439,500.00 

  

Page 31



S106 Contributions Due: 

The table below shows details of developments with contributions valued over £100,000 
that have become due in Jun/Jul 2018.   

Developer Amount Development/Contribution 

Bovis/Barratt/Persimmon 
c/o WYG 

£154,133.55 
 

Land at Brockworth-Coopers Edge  
 

Bovis Homes Western 
 

£707,210.30 
 

Land at  Fire Service College  
 

Bovis Homes Western 
 

278,416.34 
 

Land at London Road, Fairford 
 

Redrow Homes Limited 
 

£255,226.21 
 

Land adj 74 Evesham Road, Bishops 
Cleeve 

Persimmon Homes Severn 
Valley  
Taylor Wimpey Bristol 

£103,988.55 
 

Land at Box Road, Cam  
 

S106 Contributions Received: 

Contributions become due on trigger dates which are set out in each agreement.  The 
table below shows the contributions valued over £100,000 that have been received Jun/Jul 
2018.   

Developer Amount  Received in Jan-Feb 2018 

Cotswold Motor Group 
 

£219,403.16 
 

Land at North Road 
West/Grovefield Way – Highways 

Bloor Homes Western  
 

£212,803.31 
 

Land to North  of Roman Way & 
Land to E Bourton Ind. PK – 
Education/Library 

Bovis/Barratt/Persimmon 
c/o WYG  

£154,133.55 
 

Land at Brockworth-Coopers Edge 
– Travel Plan 

Bovis Homes Western 
 

£707,210.30 
 

Land at  Fire Service College- 
Education 

Taylor Wimpey Bristol  
 

£103,988.55 
 

Land at Box Road, Cam  
 

Bovis Homes Western 
 

278,416.34 
 

Land at London Road, Fairford 
 

Persimmon Homes 
Severn Valley 

£104,130.91 
 

GCHQ Oakley, Priors Road  
Education  

Page 32



ANNEX 4: Waste Performance for 2017/18 
 

 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

2018/19 
forecast 

Total Municipal Waste 293,833 288,680 280,205 278,355 287,823 298,019 301,432 309,470 304,103 306,728 

Variance -4.4% -1.8% -2.9% -0.7% 3.4% 3.5% 1.1% 2.7% -1.7% 0.9% 

Municipal Waste Landfilled 169,023 152,956 147,092 144,822 155,366 161,009 156,498 153,556 143,249 142,687 

Variance -4.2% -9.5% -3.8% -1.5% 7.3% 3.6% -2.8% -1.9% -6.7% -0.4% 

  

 
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

2018/19 
forecast 

Total Household Waste 276,816 273,373 261,792 261,291 266,475 275,949 277,864 286,638 281,906 284,591 

Variance -4.5% -1.2% -4.2% -0.2% 2.0% 3.6% 0.7% 3.2% -1.7% 0.9% 

Household Waste 
Landfilled 

161,072 145,911 137,337 134,504 138,141 146,335 146,158 136,435 127,564 129,304 

Variance -3.6% -9.4% -5.9% -2.1% 2.7% 3.6% -0.1% -6.7% -6.5% 1.4% 

Reuse & Recycling 66,501 70,348 68,771 70,189 71,075 69,967 73,029 80,116 82,241 83,844 

Variance -5.7% 5.8% -2.2% 2.1% 1.3% -1.6% 4.4% 9.7% 2.7% 1.9% 

Food & Garden Waste 49,244 54,914 55,100 55,803 56,637 60,104 59,132 69,618 71,363 70,676 

Variance -2.9% 11.5% 0.3% 1.3% 1.5% 6.1% -1.6% 17.7% 2.5% -0.9% 

Total Recycling 115,744 125,262 123,871 125,992 127,712 130,071 132,161 148,832 153,604 154,520 

Variance 4.5% -8.2% 1.1% -1.7% -1.4% -1.8% 1.6% 12.6% 3.2% 0.6% 

 
 

P
age 33



 

P
age 34



64 

Chapter 6: Local government 

6.1 Climate change risks 
Local government plays a major role in shaping local places by taking decisions and 
providing guidance, through the local democratic process, on the urban landscape, the 
built environment, green and blue natural spaces, and public health. 

Many of the risks identified in CCRA2017 and set out in chapters 2-5 of this NAP and 
many of the impacts arising from climate change are relevant to the responsibilities and 
functioning of local government. Many of the impacts arising from climate change will 
affect their communities, infrastructure and assets, and the provision of services. Impacts 
are likely to vary from location to location. Insufficient local decision-making on how 
infrastructure funding is prioritised is a concern - this can be a barrier to an effective 
response to increased flood risk. And at a rural level higher temperatures, droughts and 
heavy rainfall aggravate the ongoing degradation of agricultural, forest and pasture 
ecosystems. This could have a negative effect on food security. Food supply is discussed 
in more detail in Chapter 5: Business and Industry. 

Local government as community leaders, working with a wide range of infrastructure and 
other local delivery partners, are at the forefront of local action to protect communities and 
businesses and safeguard growth from risks posed by severe weather events and a 
changing climate. They recognise the need to take adaptation action to minimise climate 
change risks to services they provide and are already taking actions. Local councils 
already have a range of duties and reporting requirements on flood risk management, 
planning, emergency planning, and biodiversity which negates the need for further 
adaptation reporting. They are involved in significant investment, service delivery, 
procurement and business continuity activities, and in relation to climate impacts and 
extreme weather, are central to long term planning, infrastructure management, 
emergency response and recovery work. Involving local government in national climate 
change strategy from an early stage will be valuable in supplying local granular insight to 
national policy, and central government climate expertise to local government. 

There is a need for, and statutory obligations on, councils, to prepare for and minimise the 
longer term impacts of climate change. This is reinforced by expectations for community 
resilience and business continuity by residents and businesses. Local government can 
also play a valuable role in raising the public profile of climate change mitigation and 
adaptation, as a central and long-term government priority. 

There are a wide range of legislative and policy drivers to enable local action on climate 
change. Local government has obligations that contribute to resilience, although not all 
local authorities will have the same responsibilities in an area. These include flood risk 

Vision 

“Local Government plays a central role in leading and supporting local places to 
become more resilient to a range of future risks and to be prepared for the 
opportunities from a changing climate” 

ANNEX 5

Page 35



 
  65 

management, under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, and commitments to 
prepare and plan for emergencies under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. Local Planning 
Authorities (LPAs) are also required under the Planning Act 2008 to adopt proactive 
strategies to mitigate and adapt to climate change. They need to take full account of flood 
risk; coastal change; and water supply and demand considerations. There are also funding 
requirements to consider adaptation as part of criteria for the Local Growth Fund. 

6.2 Local delivery of the 25 year environment plan 
Mitigating and adapting to climate change is one of 10 goals of the 25 Year Environment 
Plan. Defra is committed to improving partnership working at a local level with local 
authorities, Local Enterprise Partnerships, Local Nature Partnerships, Defra Group bodies 
and other key local decision makers to help deliver the Plan’s goals.  

Many organisations and partnerships pursue their own plans, across different areas and 
boundaries. In places there is good coordination between them, but in others there are 
opportunities for joining up and integrating environmental work. Activity within an area 
could be better coordinated and aligned if all the relevant delivery organisations came 
together to create a single plan.  

Defra intend to facilitate this coordination through the development of 14 local natural 
capital plans. These plans will be developed from existing Defra Group Area Integrated 
Plans, which are joint statements between the EA, NE and the Forestry Commission – the 
bodies that coordinate Defra’s activity in an area. Local natural capital plans will go beyond 
the Defra focus of Area Integrated Plans to include all relevant delivery in the area, 
ensuring greater coordination and integration of activities that impact on the environment. 
These plans will be created by bringing together key local partnerships and organisations 
whose actions impact on the environment to prioritise local environmental opportunities 
and issues and identify actions to address these. Stakeholder engagement will begin in 
autumn 2018 to flesh out what a local natural capital plan will look like. 

Under this natural capital approach, local authorities’ existing climate change adaptation 
work will be more closely aligned with other strands of delivery in the area, exploiting 
synergies where they exist. This will enable local organisations, such as local government, 
to tie climate change adaptation in with economic and social policy in the area. For 
instance, building green infrastructure into local plans could have positive socio economic 
impacts on areas such as public health and urban flood risk, as well as potentially 
providing climate change adaptation benefits. 

As part of implementing the 25 Year Environment Plan, Defra will work with partners to 
develop metrics to assess progress against all the goals set out in the Plan 

6.3 Raising awareness, building capability and making 
the case for action. 
Government works with local government networks, including the Local Adaptation 
Advisory Panel (LAAP), to identify opportunities and address priority risks. Over the period 
covered by the first NAP the LAAP and Climate Local played a significant role in 
promoting, leading, and coordinating work with local authorities on climate change 

Page 36



 
  66 

adaptation. One of the key outputs has been the development and rollout of a Business 
Case for Climate Ready Councils for managing the impacts of severe weather and a 
changing climate. This was produced and published jointly by the LAAP and Climate 
Ready Support Service in 2015.  

Building on this the LAAP is now working on a project to demonstrate the extent of climate 
change adaptation across local authorities. This will help identify what would constitute 
model adaptation action across the range of responsibilities of a local authority in England. 
It will have examples of where this is happening. The LAAP will consider how this can be 
disseminated and implemented. The project will clarify: 

• the role and obligations of local government in addressing climate change risks and 
the minimum activities that local authorities can be expected to undertake; 

• what further actions or good practice on climate adaptation local government should 
be considering to bring them up to good status; and  

• the development and improvement of current coordination and networks to better 
support the integration of climate change adaptation across local government’s 
activities and programmes.  

The LAAP is working to promote climate adaptation and best practice, including the 
current business case and further tools developed over the course of this NAP. This 
includes working with other organisations such as the Local Government Association 
(LGA) and the Association of Directors of Environment, Economy, Planning and 
Transport (ADEPT) to review progress and promote capacity building through targeted 
engagement with particular LG sectors on climate change adaptation that local 
government is making. 

In doing this the LAAP will explore with partners how to stimulate further cooperation on 
climate change adaptation across local government. This includes the potential for an 
informal network of local authorities to drive, inspire and support local government action 
to improve resilience of their communities and services to climate change impacts. 

6.4 Local authorities, including mayors, cities and city 
regions 
There are risks of severe weather events that are common to local authorities of all sizes, 
for example, managing surface water flooding, and heatwaves. In terms of enhancing and 
protecting the local environment there can also be some common aims for all authorities, 
such as the environmental landscape, built environment and green natural spaces. Town 
and parish authorities do not have the resources of city or county authorities, and may 
adapt at a different rate to their larger counterparts. They may, however, be able to 
influence larger local authorities to address climate change as a strategic priority. 

6.4.1 Mayoral combined authorities (MCAs) 

These provide a new scale of governance for local government in seven areas. They bring 
new powers and budgets (such as the Transforming Cities Fund) to bear across politically 
cohesive, functional economic geographies. The MCAs are potentially valuable partners in 
driving locally led and informed adaption plans in their areas. Many of them have already 
made environmental goals central to their plans, and Mayors provide high profile figures 
that can help champion this agenda. For example: 

Page 37



 
  67 

• Mayor Andy Burnham and the Greater Manchester Combined Authority launched a 
Green Summit in March 2018; have established a £15m low carbon fund; are 
exploring a possible European Regional Environment fund59 and will produce a 
Natural Capital Investment Plan; 

• Mayor Andy Street and the West Midlands Combined Authority published a 2014-
2019 environment strategy addressing climate change resilience, sustainable 
infrastructure and raising environmental awareness; and 

• Mayor Steve Rotheram is championing a Mersey tidal barrage hydropower scheme, 
while Liverpool City Region Combined Authority and Local Enterprise Partnership 
launched the report: '' Building Climate Resilience: Good Practice Case Studies in 
Liverpool City Region'' in September 2017. 

6.4.2 The core cities group and London 

The Core Cities Climate Resilience and Adaptation Working Group provides a crucial 
platform for sharing and support between cities on climate adaptation areas. This aims to 
meet and, where possible, go beyond the commitments to action set out in the Core Cities 
Commitment in the first NAP. London sets out a robust range of adaptation policies and 
proposals in the London Environment Strategy, which was published in May 2018, with 
additional work done to embed adaptation into transport, health inequalities, planning, 
housing, and other mayoral strategies. London is taking a sector-based approach to 
adaptation, building on the wealth of valuable evidence to help sectors understand their 
risks and opportunities, to develop plans to address them, and to monitor sector progress 
in adapting. The Core Cities Group and London undertake a range of activities to promote 
climate change adaptation, raise awareness and foster leadership.  

These include: 

• Being active participants in a range of national and international commitments60 
which demonstrate awareness, commitment and leadership. These commitments 
need to be monitored and progress on climate adaptation communicated more 
widely; 

• all English members and London make disclosures reporting their environmental 
impact under the Carbon Disclosure Project. Bristol and Greater Manchester are 
signatories to the Under2Mou initiative61 and participate in the Rockefeller 100 
Resilient Cities campaign; and 

• wider work to promote sustainability, providing platforms and activity around climate 
adaptation issues. Examples are Bristol’s Green Capital initiative and Manchester 
City Council’s climate change agency, which was launched in September 2015.   

In 2018 Defra will set up a formalised working group with the Core Cities Group to develop 
the work on air quality and climate change resilience. This will commit to effectively 
promote adaptation in cities, work to progress action and disseminate best practice and 
accelerate action between the Core Cities Group, London and other city region areas more 
widely, and look to deliver a programme of actions. 

                                            
59 Greater Manchester Combined Autority, Multi-million pound fund to make Greater Manchester a greener 
city-region, 14/06/2017. URL: https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/news/article/151/multi-
million_pound_fund_to_make_greater_manchester_a_greener_city-region  
60 Includes Mayors Adapt, Compact of Mayors, and Covenant of Mayors.  
61 Under2Mou initiative. URL: http://climateinitiativesplatform.org/index.php/Under_2_MOU  

Page 38

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/news/article/151/multi-million_pound_fund_to_make_greater_manchester_a_greener_city-region
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/news/article/151/multi-million_pound_fund_to_make_greater_manchester_a_greener_city-region
http://climateinitiativesplatform.org/index.php/Under_2_MOU


 
  68 

6.4.3 Cities commitment 

The first NAP Cities Commitment set out an agreement between the Core Cities Group, 
London Councils and the Greater London Authority to work together on climate change 
adaptation. Progress in the key areas of that commitment is shown below. 

Embedding climate risk management in the built environment: 

• Core Cities Group members are developing spatial plans. Devolution and Cities 
Deals have meant a strengthening and continuation of that process. Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority consulted on its GM Spatial Framework62 
between October 2016 and January 2017. A second version of the plan, which aims 
to make the most of Greater Manchester’s brownfield sites and reduce the impact 
on greenbelt, is being developed;  

• Core Cities Group members are actively developing standards around sustainable 
development, especially Sustainable Drainage Systems; and   

• ongoing local work to understand and promote property level protection includes 
Liverpool City Council seeing a number of installations on the back of local 
development. Under the Flood Resilient Community Pathfinder initiative Liverpool 
has enhanced property-level flood protection and energy efficiency upgrades to 
residents of the Woodlands Estate.  

Strengthen the climate resilience of infrastructure: 

• Core Cities Group work with infrastructure providers and the emergency planning 
process via the established Local Resilience Forum (LRF) and civil contingencies 
process. Cities which have experienced recent severe fluvial and surface water 
flooding are providing information to government on the response and recovery 
process; 

• With the ongoing process of engagement on the National Flood Resilience Review, 
which the Core Cities Group initiated with the government, there is potential to 
engage in a wider dialogue on some of the emerging and future risks. To support 
this Core Cities Group are undertaking a flood resilient evidence baselining 
process. This will try to understand what studies, reports and information is held 
and where, and to what extent this looks at future flood risk in a changed climate.   

Address and build resilience to the health and wellbeing impacts of climate change: 
• Core Cities undertake considerable work on flood resilience with at risk 

communities. There are emerging practices around severe weather and winter 
warmth as well as a considerable amount of work via emergency planning and 
community flood risk resilience work. Core Cities recognise climate change issues 
with heatwaves, or overheating in buildings, and will need to respond to the former, 
as a category 1/first line responder as required by the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 
LRFs will consider risks via the risk assessment process they do. Further 
information on community response to emergencies, including severe weather 
events, is in section 4.7 of the People and Built Environment chapter. 

                                            
62 Greater Manchester Combined Authority, Draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework, 2016. URL: 
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/downloads/20018/greater_manchester_spatial_framework 

 

Page 39

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/downloads/20018/greater_manchester_spatial_framework


 
  69 

Address climate impacts on Business and Services: 

• A wider programme of work is underway around business resilience. Leeds City 
Council continues to grow its Leeds Alert system, which allows West Yorkshire 
Police and Leeds City Council to send out emergency alert messages on 
emergencies and disruptive events to registered businesses. There is a specific 
severe weather group contact list for alerts currently being established; 

• Greater Manchester Combined Authority is working with its LRF to prepare 
businesses and is adapting its existing guide for small business ‘Weathering the 
Storm’63 to its purposes and trialling direct SME resilience; 

• Newcastle City Council is using a €100,000 Technical Assistance Grant from the 
European Investment Bank to undertake a climate risk and vulnerability assessment 
for two Accelerated Development Zone sites. 

Development of Business Case work: 

The “Business Case for Climate Ready Councils for managing the impacts of severe 
weather and a changing climate” was published in 2015. Since then there has been 
collaborative work to develop a business case. The Core Cities Group has been 
considering how to understand and communicate the economic impacts of climate change. 
There has been a proposal to focus work on high level risk assessment of strategic 
development/investment sites, but this will need agreement by Core Cities members and 
how it is resourced.   

In 2017 Greater Manchester Combined Authority was selected as an ‘urban pioneer’ to 
test certain issues and approaches around natural capital accounting and ecosystem 
services as part of the 25 Year Environment Plan. This provides an opportunity to work to 
understand, develop and share some economic value information on the climate resilience 
services provided by natural assets.   

Leeds City Council developed a vulnerability mapping tool under the first NAP Cities 
Commitment. It prioritised which mapping layers would be most useful and it is making use 
of some of them to plan its health work. The methodology gave Leeds a better idea of its 
mapping resources and how they could be used to plan for climate change adaptation and 
severe weather. The tool was disseminated throughout the Core Cities Group. 

EU Work: 

In 2015, the European Commission merged two Covenant of Mayors initiatives on climate 
change adaptation (Mayors Adapt) and mitigation to promote an integrated approach to 
climate and energy action. From 2017 onwards adaptation was entirely integrated into the 
Covenant of Mayors for Climate and Energy. This aims to increase support for local 
activities, provide a platform for greater engagement and networking by cities, and raise 
public awareness about adaptation and mitigation and the measures needed. There are 36 
UK cities signed up to Mayors Adapt. They have utilised the expertise and opportunities 
that this, and other, initiatives have provided, but there is uncertainty as to what similar 
support may be available after EU Exit.  

                                            

63 Claps and Greater Manchester Resilience Forum, Weathering the Storm, 2017. URL: 
http://media.claspinfo.org/sites/default/files/Weathering%20the%20Storm%20Manchester%20Final%202508
2017.pdf  

Page 40

http://media.claspinfo.org/sites/default/files/Weathering%20the%20Storm%20Manchester%20Final%2025082017.pdf
http://media.claspinfo.org/sites/default/files/Weathering%20the%20Storm%20Manchester%20Final%2025082017.pdf


Environment & Communities Scrutiny Scorecard

Quarter 1 2018/19

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page no.
Key to Symbols 2
Highways & Flood 3
Fire, Planning & Infrastructure & Waste 4
Strategic Risk Register Summary 7

1

ANNEX 6

P
age 41

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,736,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4)

4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3)

3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2)

2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1)

1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 42



Highways & Flood
Cllr Vernon Smith

Highways & Floods

28 day defects repaired or
made safe  overall %
repaired in time (other
defects)

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

96.4 % 98.0 % 94.5 % 77.8 % 98.0 % 95.0 %
Publicly
Reported

% delivery of the annual
gulley emptying
programme

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

34.0 % 52.0 % 89.0 % 113.0 % 36.0 % 25.0 %
Publicly
Reported

% of Sustainable Urban
Drainage responses made
to Local Planning
Authorities within 21 days

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.0 % 98.0 % 100.0 % 93.0 % 100.0 % 95.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

3

P
age 43

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')


Fire, Planning & Infrastructure
Waste

Cllr Nigel Moor

Trading Standards

Number of
complaints/reports of scam
activity against vulnerable
individuals (includes
doorstep crime)

Bigger is
Better

83 160 254 338 77 85

In the same way as total number of complaints is
determined by citizens' advice national consumer
helpline, the number of complaints about scams and
doorstep crime is dependant on referrals from CAB and
partner agencies.  We continue to promote the work of this
Service with partner agencies in order to maintain level of
activity in this area as it is a key priority for Trading
Standards.  Quarterly targets are based on maintaining
levels from last year and will be 85, 170, 255 and 340.

Publicly
Reported

% of complaints/reports of
scam activity against
vulnerable individuals
where there is a trader
present or immediate risk
of additional loss
responded to within 1
working day

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 95.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Road Safety

Number of killed and
seriously injured people

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 66 134 225 314 61 64
Publicly
Reported

(A) Number of killed and
seriously injured children

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 4 10 12 18 2 4
Publicly
Reported

(B) Number of killed and
seriously injured older
people

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 12 27 49 73 15 14
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017) Q2 (2017) Q3 (2017) Q4 (2017) Q1 (2018)
Q1 Forecast
(2018)

Comments Q1 (2018)

Parking & Passenger Transport

Cost per journey
(community transport
journeys)

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

£3.61 £3.90 £3.90 £4.17 £4.25 £4.00 Slight increase in costs due to fall in passenger numbers.
Publicly
Reported

Number of bus services in
receipt of subsidy

Plan is Best Year to Date 105 103 103 104 103 105
Publicly
Reported

Number of community
transport bus journeys

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 31,607 26,623 30,530 28,725 23,762 25,000
Publicly
Reported

Average cost per single
passenger journey on
public transport

Smaller is
Better

£1.45 £1.45 £1.45 £1.44 £1.45 £1.45
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Fire & Rescue

Number of Safe and Well
visits undertaken

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,684 1,710 1,909 2,342 2,259 2,250
the number of safe and well visits are above target.  station
open days throughout the summer will increase demand,
although summer is usually generally quieter.

Publicly
Reported

% of incidents of dwelling
fires attended within 8
minutes  Risk Category 1

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

70.0 % 85.0 % 81.3 % 76.9 % 80.0 % 80.0 %

Work is continuing to improve all attendance times and
this is starting to pay dividends. The overall attendance
times for dwelling fires has improved month on month for
the first quarter, with a prealert system being trialled for
Wholetime Crews and all late attendances challenged by
District Officers. This will be continued, and the prealert
system has now been approved by the Senior Leadership
Team. Work has also begun to attempt to find a technical
solution to enable prealerting for RDS Firefighters.

Publicly
Reported

% of Safe and Well visits
undertaken to those in high
risk groups

Bigger is
Better

75.0 % 69.0 % 71.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 75.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Number of Accidental
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 62 60 83 73 67 61

We have experienced a gradual steady decrease in
accidental dwelling fires over the last 3 years, with the
exception of one blip in Q3 last year. Q3 and Q4 are
predictably higher due to seasonally related ignition
sources from heating and festive activities.

Publicly
Reported

Number of Deliberate
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 5 1 5 5 2 4
Within target and an improvement on our position for Q1
in the previous 2 years.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Climate Change

Renewable energy
generation (kWh) from the
Council Estate (exc
schools)

Bigger is
Better

10,207 3,901 7,271 7,875 9,817
Publicly
Reported

Renewable Energy
Generation from the
Council Estate (exc
schools) % of total energy
consumption

Bigger is
Better

0.01 % 0.03 % 0.03 % 0.02 % 0.01 %
Generation from solar PV on The Main Place, Coleford and Cirencester Fire
Station. Opportunities for increasing generation on the estate are being
investigated.  Shire Hall refurbishment will include solar PV.

Publicly
Reported

Overall Council Carbon
Emission, buildings &
transport (excluding
schools) Tonnes of CO2

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 14,165 2,420 4,672 8,279 12,052 12,390

Ahead of target performance due to the ongoing LED
street lighting works and improvements to Shire Hall,
despite 'The Beast from the East' in March.  The Council
has now more than halved it's corporate emissions over the
past 11 years and is significantly ahead of target to reduce
emissions by 60% by 2020/21, against the 2006/07
baseline. Emissions have reduced by 55% from 26,800
tCO2e in 2006/07 to 12,100 tCO2e in 2016/17; a
reduction of almost 14,800 tCO2e.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Comments Q4 (2017/18)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18)
Q4 Target
(2017/18)

Comments Q4 (2017/18)

Waste

Cost to dispose of landfill waste per
household (£s per annum)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast £53 £55 £55 £55 £54
Publicly
Reported

Percentage of household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and composting

Bigger is
Better

Forecast 54.64 % 54.98 % 54.73 % 54.45 % 54.33 % 54.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Percentage of municipal waste
landfilled.

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 46.43 % 46.60 % 47.20 % 45.41 % 46.06 % 46.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Residual household waste per household
(kgs)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 458 455 454 457 470 467
Publicly
Reported

Overall residual waste arisings (except
HRC's) Tonnes

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 117,191 116,565 116,058 117,230 118,588 120,535
Publicly
Reported

% of household waste sent to landfill
Smaller is
Better

Forecast 45.18 % 44.84 % 45.10 % 45.20 % 46.00 % 46.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Forecast  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q1)

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q2)

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q3)

Outturn
2017/18

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Comments Q1 2018/19

Yearly Trend Analysis  Forecast Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Q3 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Outturn
2017/18

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Target
Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Comments 2018/19

4

P
age 44

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')


Fire, Planning & Infrastructure
Waste

Cllr Nigel Moor

Trading Standards

Number of
complaints/reports of scam
activity against vulnerable
individuals (includes
doorstep crime)

Bigger is
Better

83 160 254 338 77 85

In the same way as total number of complaints is
determined by citizens' advice national consumer
helpline, the number of complaints about scams and
doorstep crime is dependant on referrals from CAB and
partner agencies.  We continue to promote the work of this
Service with partner agencies in order to maintain level of
activity in this area as it is a key priority for Trading
Standards.  Quarterly targets are based on maintaining
levels from last year and will be 85, 170, 255 and 340.

Publicly
Reported

% of complaints/reports of
scam activity against
vulnerable individuals
where there is a trader
present or immediate risk
of additional loss
responded to within 1
working day

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 95.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Road Safety

Number of killed and
seriously injured people

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 66 134 225 314 61 64
Publicly
Reported

(A) Number of killed and
seriously injured children

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 4 10 12 18 2 4
Publicly
Reported

(B) Number of killed and
seriously injured older
people

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 12 27 49 73 15 14
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017) Q2 (2017) Q3 (2017) Q4 (2017) Q1 (2018)
Q1 Forecast
(2018)

Comments Q1 (2018)

Parking & Passenger Transport

Cost per journey
(community transport
journeys)

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

£3.61 £3.90 £3.90 £4.17 £4.25 £4.00 Slight increase in costs due to fall in passenger numbers.
Publicly
Reported

Number of bus services in
receipt of subsidy

Plan is Best Year to Date 105 103 103 104 103 105
Publicly
Reported

Number of community
transport bus journeys

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 31,607 26,623 30,530 28,725 23,762 25,000
Publicly
Reported

Average cost per single
passenger journey on
public transport

Smaller is
Better

£1.45 £1.45 £1.45 £1.44 £1.45 £1.45
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Fire & Rescue

Number of Safe and Well
visits undertaken

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,684 1,710 1,909 2,342 2,259 2,250
the number of safe and well visits are above target.  station
open days throughout the summer will increase demand,
although summer is usually generally quieter.

Publicly
Reported

% of incidents of dwelling
fires attended within 8
minutes  Risk Category 1

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

70.0 % 85.0 % 81.3 % 76.9 % 80.0 % 80.0 %

Work is continuing to improve all attendance times and
this is starting to pay dividends. The overall attendance
times for dwelling fires has improved month on month for
the first quarter, with a prealert system being trialled for
Wholetime Crews and all late attendances challenged by
District Officers. This will be continued, and the prealert
system has now been approved by the Senior Leadership
Team. Work has also begun to attempt to find a technical
solution to enable prealerting for RDS Firefighters.

Publicly
Reported

% of Safe and Well visits
undertaken to those in high
risk groups

Bigger is
Better

75.0 % 69.0 % 71.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 75.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Number of Accidental
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 62 60 83 73 67 61

We have experienced a gradual steady decrease in
accidental dwelling fires over the last 3 years, with the
exception of one blip in Q3 last year. Q3 and Q4 are
predictably higher due to seasonally related ignition
sources from heating and festive activities.

Publicly
Reported

Number of Deliberate
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 5 1 5 5 2 4
Within target and an improvement on our position for Q1
in the previous 2 years.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Climate Change

Renewable energy
generation (kWh) from the
Council Estate (exc
schools)

Bigger is
Better

10,207 3,901 7,271 7,875 9,817
Publicly
Reported

Renewable Energy
Generation from the
Council Estate (exc
schools) % of total energy
consumption

Bigger is
Better

0.01 % 0.03 % 0.03 % 0.02 % 0.01 %
Generation from solar PV on The Main Place, Coleford and Cirencester Fire
Station. Opportunities for increasing generation on the estate are being
investigated.  Shire Hall refurbishment will include solar PV.

Publicly
Reported

Overall Council Carbon
Emission, buildings &
transport (excluding
schools) Tonnes of CO2

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 14,165 2,420 4,672 8,279 12,052 12,390

Ahead of target performance due to the ongoing LED
street lighting works and improvements to Shire Hall,
despite 'The Beast from the East' in March.  The Council
has now more than halved it's corporate emissions over the
past 11 years and is significantly ahead of target to reduce
emissions by 60% by 2020/21, against the 2006/07
baseline. Emissions have reduced by 55% from 26,800
tCO2e in 2006/07 to 12,100 tCO2e in 2016/17; a
reduction of almost 14,800 tCO2e.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Comments Q4 (2017/18)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18)
Q4 Target
(2017/18)

Comments Q4 (2017/18)

Waste

Cost to dispose of landfill waste per
household (£s per annum)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast £53 £55 £55 £55 £54
Publicly
Reported

Percentage of household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and composting

Bigger is
Better

Forecast 54.64 % 54.98 % 54.73 % 54.45 % 54.33 % 54.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Percentage of municipal waste
landfilled.

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 46.43 % 46.60 % 47.20 % 45.41 % 46.06 % 46.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Residual household waste per household
(kgs)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 458 455 454 457 470 467
Publicly
Reported

Overall residual waste arisings (except
HRC's) Tonnes

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 117,191 116,565 116,058 117,230 118,588 120,535
Publicly
Reported

% of household waste sent to landfill
Smaller is
Better

Forecast 45.18 % 44.84 % 45.10 % 45.20 % 46.00 % 46.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Forecast  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q1)

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q2)

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q3)

Outturn
2017/18

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Comments Q1 2018/19

Yearly Trend Analysis  Forecast Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Q3 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Outturn
2017/18

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Target
Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Comments 2018/19

5

P
age 45

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')


Fire, Planning & Infrastructure
Waste

Cllr Nigel Moor

Trading Standards

Number of
complaints/reports of scam
activity against vulnerable
individuals (includes
doorstep crime)

Bigger is
Better

83 160 254 338 77 85

In the same way as total number of complaints is
determined by citizens' advice national consumer
helpline, the number of complaints about scams and
doorstep crime is dependant on referrals from CAB and
partner agencies.  We continue to promote the work of this
Service with partner agencies in order to maintain level of
activity in this area as it is a key priority for Trading
Standards.  Quarterly targets are based on maintaining
levels from last year and will be 85, 170, 255 and 340.

Publicly
Reported

% of complaints/reports of
scam activity against
vulnerable individuals
where there is a trader
present or immediate risk
of additional loss
responded to within 1
working day

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 95.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Road Safety

Number of killed and
seriously injured people

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 66 134 225 314 61 64
Publicly
Reported

(A) Number of killed and
seriously injured children

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 4 10 12 18 2 4
Publicly
Reported

(B) Number of killed and
seriously injured older
people

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 12 27 49 73 15 14
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017) Q2 (2017) Q3 (2017) Q4 (2017) Q1 (2018)
Q1 Forecast
(2018)

Comments Q1 (2018)

Parking & Passenger Transport

Cost per journey
(community transport
journeys)

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

£3.61 £3.90 £3.90 £4.17 £4.25 £4.00 Slight increase in costs due to fall in passenger numbers.
Publicly
Reported

Number of bus services in
receipt of subsidy

Plan is Best Year to Date 105 103 103 104 103 105
Publicly
Reported

Number of community
transport bus journeys

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 31,607 26,623 30,530 28,725 23,762 25,000
Publicly
Reported

Average cost per single
passenger journey on
public transport

Smaller is
Better

£1.45 £1.45 £1.45 £1.44 £1.45 £1.45
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Fire & Rescue

Number of Safe and Well
visits undertaken

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,684 1,710 1,909 2,342 2,259 2,250
the number of safe and well visits are above target.  station
open days throughout the summer will increase demand,
although summer is usually generally quieter.

Publicly
Reported

% of incidents of dwelling
fires attended within 8
minutes  Risk Category 1

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

70.0 % 85.0 % 81.3 % 76.9 % 80.0 % 80.0 %

Work is continuing to improve all attendance times and
this is starting to pay dividends. The overall attendance
times for dwelling fires has improved month on month for
the first quarter, with a prealert system being trialled for
Wholetime Crews and all late attendances challenged by
District Officers. This will be continued, and the prealert
system has now been approved by the Senior Leadership
Team. Work has also begun to attempt to find a technical
solution to enable prealerting for RDS Firefighters.

Publicly
Reported

% of Safe and Well visits
undertaken to those in high
risk groups

Bigger is
Better

75.0 % 69.0 % 71.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 75.0 %
Publicly
Reported

Number of Accidental
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 62 60 83 73 67 61

We have experienced a gradual steady decrease in
accidental dwelling fires over the last 3 years, with the
exception of one blip in Q3 last year. Q3 and Q4 are
predictably higher due to seasonally related ignition
sources from heating and festive activities.

Publicly
Reported

Number of Deliberate
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 5 1 5 5 2 4
Within target and an improvement on our position for Q1
in the previous 2 years.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Q1 (2018/19)
Q1 Target
(2018/19)

Comments Q1 (2018/19)

Climate Change

Renewable energy
generation (kWh) from the
Council Estate (exc
schools)

Bigger is
Better

10,207 3,901 7,271 7,875 9,817
Publicly
Reported

Renewable Energy
Generation from the
Council Estate (exc
schools) % of total energy
consumption

Bigger is
Better

0.01 % 0.03 % 0.03 % 0.02 % 0.01 %
Generation from solar PV on The Main Place, Coleford and Cirencester Fire
Station. Opportunities for increasing generation on the estate are being
investigated.  Shire Hall refurbishment will include solar PV.

Publicly
Reported

Overall Council Carbon
Emission, buildings &
transport (excluding
schools) Tonnes of CO2

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 14,165 2,420 4,672 8,279 12,052 12,390

Ahead of target performance due to the ongoing LED
street lighting works and improvements to Shire Hall,
despite 'The Beast from the East' in March.  The Council
has now more than halved it's corporate emissions over the
past 11 years and is significantly ahead of target to reduce
emissions by 60% by 2020/21, against the 2006/07
baseline. Emissions have reduced by 55% from 26,800
tCO2e in 2006/07 to 12,100 tCO2e in 2016/17; a
reduction of almost 14,800 tCO2e.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18) Comments Q4 (2017/18)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q2 (2017/18) Q3 (2017/18) Q4 (2017/18)
Q4 Target
(2017/18)

Comments Q4 (2017/18)

Waste

Cost to dispose of landfill waste per
household (£s per annum)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast £53 £55 £55 £55 £54
Publicly
Reported

Percentage of household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and composting

Bigger is
Better

Forecast 54.64 % 54.98 % 54.73 % 54.45 % 54.33 % 54.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Percentage of municipal waste
landfilled.

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 46.43 % 46.60 % 47.20 % 45.41 % 46.06 % 46.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Residual household waste per household
(kgs)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 458 455 454 457 470 467
Publicly
Reported

Overall residual waste arisings (except
HRC's) Tonnes

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 117,191 116,565 116,058 117,230 118,588 120,535
Publicly
Reported

% of household waste sent to landfill
Smaller is
Better

Forecast 45.18 % 44.84 % 45.10 % 45.20 % 46.00 % 46.00 %
Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Forecast  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q1)

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q2)

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q3)

Outturn
2017/18

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Comments Q1 2018/19

Yearly Trend Analysis  Forecast Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Q3 Forecast
Outturn
2017/18

Outturn
2017/18

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Target
Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Comments 2018/19

6

P
age 46

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col8')


Strategic Risk Register Summary

SR4.1
Failure to deliver expected benefits/outcomes from the Residual
waste project impacting on future budgets and the
environment.

Riglar, Nigel High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

SR9.1
Failure to deliver outcomes of the Prevent Strategy impacting
on the residents and businesses of Gloucestershire

Edgar, Stewart High 20 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

SR9.2
Failure to deliver outcomes of the Prevent Strategy impacting
on the council's reputation due to exposure in national media

Edgar, Stewart High 25 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

SR10.1

Inability of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond to
an incident or event external to the council that results in
community disruption and failure to return to normal, within
required timescales.

Edgar, Stewart High 15 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9

SR10.3
Implications of the Policing and Crime Bill impacting on the Fire
& Rescue Service and County Council

Edgar, Stewart High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

SR12.1

Failure of the Council/Gloucestershire to adapt to a more
volatile climate, with rising temperatures, continually high and
increasing energy prices and the increasing need to reduce
carbon emissions.

Riglar, Nigel High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

2017 as a whole was rather warmer than average for
the UK; midJune saw a significant hot spell, the
highest June temperatures for over 40 years, and,
unusually, brought temperatures above 30 °C
somewhere in the UK five days in a row.  Autumn
and early winter saw occasional notable storm
systems, and widespread snow fell in December. Into
2018 a colder than average February and March
meant a delayed start to the growing season.  The
UK mean temperature for 2017 was 9.6 °C, the fifth
warmest year since 1910; the spring was the equal
warmest on record, with 2011.  The UK rainfall total
for 2017 was 97% of the 19812010 average.

In summary for Q4, 2017/18 (reported in arrears):
 GCC corporate emissions for the year were
significantly ahead of target, due to the ongoing LED
street lighting works and improvements to Shire Hall,
despite 'The Beast from the East' in March.  The
Council has now more than halved it's corporate
emissions over the past 11 years and is significantly
ahead of target to reduce emissions by 60% by
2020/21, against the 2006/07 baseline. Emissions
have reduced by 55% from 26,800 tCO2e in 2006/07
to 12,100 tCO2e in 2016/17; a reduction of almost
14,800 tCO2e.
 Schools performance is no longer reported, as
accountability for their performance has passed to the
Dept for Education.
 Renewable energy generation on the Council's
estate is very limited.  Options for further investment
are being investigated.

GCC continues to chair the Local Advisory Adaptation
Panel (LAAP) for England.  The LAAP was established
by Defra in 2011 as a forum for dialogue on
adaptation between central and local government and
to provide support that would assist local government
in adapting to climate change. The current emphasis
is on a more strategic and policy focused direction.
The LAAP currently consists of 17 members from
Defra, DBEIS, Environment Agency, LGA and councils
and meets bimonthly. It does not formally report to
any Defra or local government organisation.
The LAAP has been working to understand gaps and
recommend modifications to Government policy to
make the country more resilient to climate change,
most recently commenting on the Local Government
chapter of the 2nd National Adaption Programme
(NAP) due to be published by Government in July
2018.

Strategic Risk 4: Waste Management

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 9: Gloucestershire Prevent

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

8

P
age 47

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C3','Col12')


Strategic Risk Register Summary

SR4.1
Failure to deliver expected benefits/outcomes from the Residual
waste project impacting on future budgets and the
environment.

Riglar, Nigel High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

SR9.1
Failure to deliver outcomes of the Prevent Strategy impacting
on the residents and businesses of Gloucestershire

Edgar, Stewart High 20 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

SR9.2
Failure to deliver outcomes of the Prevent Strategy impacting
on the council's reputation due to exposure in national media

Edgar, Stewart High 25 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

SR10.1

Inability of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond to
an incident or event external to the council that results in
community disruption and failure to return to normal, within
required timescales.

Edgar, Stewart High 15 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9

SR10.3
Implications of the Policing and Crime Bill impacting on the Fire
& Rescue Service and County Council

Edgar, Stewart High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

SR12.1

Failure of the Council/Gloucestershire to adapt to a more
volatile climate, with rising temperatures, continually high and
increasing energy prices and the increasing need to reduce
carbon emissions.

Riglar, Nigel High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

2017 as a whole was rather warmer than average for
the UK; midJune saw a significant hot spell, the
highest June temperatures for over 40 years, and,
unusually, brought temperatures above 30 °C
somewhere in the UK five days in a row.  Autumn
and early winter saw occasional notable storm
systems, and widespread snow fell in December. Into
2018 a colder than average February and March
meant a delayed start to the growing season.  The
UK mean temperature for 2017 was 9.6 °C, the fifth
warmest year since 1910; the spring was the equal
warmest on record, with 2011.  The UK rainfall total
for 2017 was 97% of the 19812010 average.

In summary for Q4, 2017/18 (reported in arrears):
 GCC corporate emissions for the year were
significantly ahead of target, due to the ongoing LED
street lighting works and improvements to Shire Hall,
despite 'The Beast from the East' in March.  The
Council has now more than halved it's corporate
emissions over the past 11 years and is significantly
ahead of target to reduce emissions by 60% by
2020/21, against the 2006/07 baseline. Emissions
have reduced by 55% from 26,800 tCO2e in 2006/07
to 12,100 tCO2e in 2016/17; a reduction of almost
14,800 tCO2e.
 Schools performance is no longer reported, as
accountability for their performance has passed to the
Dept for Education.
 Renewable energy generation on the Council's
estate is very limited.  Options for further investment
are being investigated.

GCC continues to chair the Local Advisory Adaptation
Panel (LAAP) for England.  The LAAP was established
by Defra in 2011 as a forum for dialogue on
adaptation between central and local government and
to provide support that would assist local government
in adapting to climate change. The current emphasis
is on a more strategic and policy focused direction.
The LAAP currently consists of 17 members from
Defra, DBEIS, Environment Agency, LGA and councils
and meets bimonthly. It does not formally report to
any Defra or local government organisation.
The LAAP has been working to understand gaps and
recommend modifications to Government policy to
make the country more resilient to climate change,
most recently commenting on the Local Government
chapter of the 2nd National Adaption Programme
(NAP) due to be published by Government in July
2018.

Strategic Risk 4: Waste Management

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 9: Gloucestershire Prevent

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk
Residual Risk
Q1 17/18

Residual Risk
Q2 17/18

Residual Risk
Q3 17/18

Residual Risk
Q4 17/18

Residual Risk
Q1 18/19

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

9

P
age 48

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B4','Col12')


Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title: Trading Standards Performance review

Meeting Date: September 20, 2018

Chairman: Councillor Robert BIRD

Presenting Officer: Andy HERMISTON

Purpose of Report: To inform Environment and Scrutiny Committee members 
regarding the performance of the Trading Standards Service 
over the period 2017/18  

Planned Dates none

Background 
documents:

none

Appendices Appendix A:  Trading Standards performance indicators

Recommendations For Environment and Scrutiny Committee to note the 
performance of the Trading Standards Service over the period 
2017/2018

Page 49

Agenda Item 5



1. Background

1.1.The Trading Standards Service (TSS) sits within the Communities Cluster of 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC); it is co-located with Gloucestershire Fire 
and Rescue Service Headquarters (GFRS) at the Tri Service Centre and 
management oversight is provided by the Deputy Chief Fire Officer as Head of 
Trading Standards.

1.2.TSS has a statutory responsibility for consumer protection and supporting the 
interests of legitimate businesses. TSS has delegated authority from GCC to 
enforce relevant consumer protection legislation on behalf of the Council.  As 
such TSS Officers are authorised for over 90 Acts of Parliament and several 
hundred Orders and Regulations made under them covering all aspects of 
consumer transactions.  This requires every TSS officer to have a broad 
understanding of the areas covered by this legislation and the ability to 
competently assimilate new information as legislation is amended or replaced.

1.3. In 2017/2018, TSS employed 21 experienced officers, equivalent to 18.92 FTE 
due to flexible working arrangements with staff (0.03 TSS officers per 1000 head 
of population in Gloucestershire). 
TSS received a budget of £774,625 with an operating budget of £1,054,474.   
This equates to £1.24 cost per head of population in Gloucestershire to GCC.

2. Financial Overview

2.1.  As identified in 1.3 above TSS had an operating budget of approximately £1m, 
this is supported by income generation in the following areas, in line with the 
statutory duty to support legitimate businesses and provide a safe and fair 
marketplace for Gloucestershire residents– 
 Primary Authority Partnerships and paid trade advice;
 Issuing licences for petroleum storage, storage of fireworks and other 

explosives and certificates of registration for performing animals;
 Asset recovery through proceeds of crime and costs recovery from 

prosecutions; and
 Grant funded work and paid work for other local authorities.

3. Operational Overview

3.1. In line with the changing focus of the role of TSS towards matters which impact 
on social and public health and changing public expectation, TSS has developed 
a demand and intelligence led strategy.  This follows models adopted nationally 
by other enforcement agencies such as the Police. 

3.2.To assist in this process, an annual Strategic Assessment is produced, analysing 
the demand on TSS over the previous year and identifying or predicting 
emerging threats or challenges.  This allows the Service to identify and prioritise 
the areas within its remit on which it should focus to ensure TSS support 
economic growth and protect consumers, especially those most vulnerable 
within the community.  

3.3. In 2017/18 TSS priorities, as identified through the Strategic Assessment, were:-
 Scams and Doorstep Crime; 
 Product Safety;

Page 50



 Disease Control in Farm Livestock (and associated animal welfare issues);
 Primary Authority and Business Support;
 Illegal Tobacco and 
 Vehicles/ the Motor Trade.

3.4.TSS received 7570 ‘complaints’ last year which included evidence of criminal 
and civil law breaches by businesses, requests for guidance or advice from 
businesses and requests for assistance from other law enforcement agencies.  
Each of these was individually assessed to identify the nature and level of 
mischief involved and 970 matters were prioritised for further investigation.  Of 
these 97% produced a positive outcome.

3.5.During this period TSS conducted 24 investigations into serious criminal 
breaches involving 27 individuals and successfully prosecuted 7 individuals and 
issued simple cautions to a further 3.  The prosecutions resulted in 
imprisonment, suspended prison sentences, unpaid work, fines, costs recovery 
and contributions to the victim surcharge levy. As a consequence of these 
investigations and prioritised ‘complaints’, TSS intervention resulted in saving 
individuals in excess of £23,000 from attempted scams or rogue trader work and 
seizing 21,190 packs of illegal tobacco, of which 6195 were counterfeit.  These 
had a street value of £111,795.25 (£251,572.78 at genuine retail price) and 
represent £142,912.86 lost revenue to HMRC.

3.6.TSS has a trusted and effective information exchange with a variety of law 
enforcement partners, GCC and GFRS for example :-
 TSS Officers work closely with Adult Social Care and financial institutions 

carrying out preventative work with adults with care and support needs who 
are at risk of financial abuse from scams and rogue traders;

 Supporting Public Health ambitions around smoking cessation and reducing 
young people’s access to tobacco products;

 Collaborating with GFRS officers to identify signs of possible financial abuse 
when carrying out Safe and Well visits and gathering intelligence of possible 
fire safety breaches which is shared with fire safety enforcement teams;

 Working closely with GFRS to provide comprehensive protection across the 
county on issues such as electrical product safety, the risks around bonfire 
night and Halloween costumes and also on product recalls where there is a 
fire safety risk;

 Referrals to other agencies have also been made in relation to fly tipping, 
possession of indecent images of children, immigration offences and modern 
day slavery.

3.7.TSS is the centre of excellence within GCC for conducting investigations and, in 
particular, the lawful application of safeguards under The Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA), offering training and guidance to other Services 
and acting as authorising officers within GCC for any activity involving covert 
surveillance or access to communications data.

4. Performance

4.1.TSS reports on a number of performance indicators in line with GCC internal 
performance management systems and processes. The indicators and 
outcomes for 2017/18 are included at Annex A.  

Page 51



5. Strategic Risks and Emerging Issues 

5.1.The impact of BREXIT on TSS remains uncertain.  Adoption of European 
legislation into UK domestic law may present opportunities for legislation to be 
amended; TSS must be prepared and able to reskill officers to reflect those 
changes and to support businesses understand the new trading environment.  

5.2.Succession planning has identified retirement profile which could see up to 7 of 
the 21 staff eligible for retirement within 5 years and up to 16 within the next 10 
years. TSS is a cohesive team of established and experienced officers, there is 
little turnover of staff and has been no recruitment into the Service for over 10 
years.  As 2/3 of existing staff will reach retirement age within a small window, 
there is a particular risk to the Service regarding the loss of essential skills.

5.3.TSS is eligible to receive some income from asset recovery under the Proceeds 
of Crime asset recovery incentivisation scheme.  Confiscation orders are made 
by Judges following evidence that the criminal has the assets necessary to cover 
them. Despite this, the timeframes involved, especially where realisation of 
assets includes the sale of property can sometimes mean that sums awarded 
may not be realised when expected and may carry over one or more financial 
years.

5.4.The complex landscape of support available to consumers makes it increasingly 
difficult for TSS to obtain an accurate picture of matters of concern.  TSS obtains 
intelligence through a national call centre (this model was introduced by Central 
Government in the early 2000s as part of a review of ‘the consumer landscape’), 
which captures detailed information about product, seller and complainant.  
However there are many other sources of advice about faulty, dangerous or 
misdescribed products available on the internet and used by consumers 
alongside public naming and shaming of businesses on social media. These ad-
hoc arrangements do not capture any of the information necessary to develop an 
intelligence picture of commerce in Gloucestershire.  Whilst TSS is unable to 
mine meaningful data from these other sources this risk is mitigated to some 
degree by conducting market surveillance projects in areas where there may be 
a concern but there is not quite enough information to determine that for certain. 
There is a special focus on working with adult social care and financial 
institutions to maintain and improve levels of reporting concerning scam activity 
targeted at vulnerable consumers.

6. Conclusion

1.1.2017/18 saw TSS provide high standard, cost effective and efficient protection to 
communities across Gloucestershire. The Service was able to develop its 
partnerships particularly in relation to supporting vulnerable consumers and has 
realised actual savings to individuals as a result of interventions.

1.2.The next annual business plan allows TSS to continue with the strong focus on 
protection of the vulnerable and supporting a vibrant Gloucestershire economy. 

Page 52



APPENDIX A - Trading Standards Performance indicators.

Indicator Actual Target Explanatory notes (where necessary)
% achieved positive outcome with respect to 
activities

97% 90% Positive outcomes include better informed businesses, 
protected consumers, gathered intelligence, protected health 
and welfare of livestock or assisted enforcement partners.

Businesses feel better equipped to comply with 
TSS legislation

100% 90%. Obtained through feedback questionnaires.

Overall level of business satisfaction with TSS 100% 90%. Obtained through feedback questionnaires.

Percentage of enquiries linked to premise records. 97% 95%. Necessary to ensure comprehensive business histories and 
records of TSS engagement.

Percentage of time spent delivering trade advice 
recorded

97% 95%. Business advice is chargeable so accurate records of time 
spent are necessary

Number of business and consumer 
enquiries/requests received via Citizens’ Advice 
Consumer Advice Service

7,569 8,100

Number of reports scam activity against 
vulnerable victims 

338 366

Both of these targets are based on the previous year – there 
is something to indicate contact figures are falling nationally 

– See point 5.4

% of reports of scam/doorstep crime activity 
against vulnerable person where there is a trader 
present or immediate risk of additional loss 
responded to within 1 day

100% 100%

Percentage of responses to request for trade 
advice within 5 days

100% 95%.

Budget forecast outturn (£000) £845 £775 Approximately £53k is owed to TSS as an outstanding 
POCA incentivisation payment from 2009.  This is 
dependant on the sale of properties which is being overseen 
by the National Crime Agency.  In previous years this sum 
has been carried forward but in 2017/18 accounting rules 
were applied in such a manner as to prevent future carry 
forward of the debt and it had to be absorbed into the 

P
age 53



2017/18 budget.  That money is still committed to TSS
Maximise income by recruiting new Primary 
Authority businesses

3 4 Due to unexpected level of staff sickness/absence TSS was 
unable to fully meet this target.  

Net cost of Trading Standards per head of 
population

£1.24 £1.24

Percentage of staff appraisals entered on SAP 100% 100%
Percentage of complaints of scam activity against 
vulnerable adults responded to within 1 working 
day

100% 100%.

Hours spent on professional development per 
food/feed/animal health qualified officers (ave. 
over 12 mths)

9.1 10 One of the officers on long term sickness/absence was a 
food officer.  There absence has affected the average figure.  
All operational food and feed officers have met the minimum 
10 hours CPD required.

Hours spent on professional development per 
officer (ave. over 12 mths)

16.3 10

Days lost to stress per FTE 0 0.04
Long term sickness/absence ave. days/FTE 2.20 0.03
Sickness/absence ave. days/FTE 8.71 5.25

Two members of staff underwent unexpected serious medial 
procedures and one took prolonged unpaid leave.

Staff turnover = staff leaving as %age of all staff 20.00 4.70 3 members of staff left on voluntary redundancy in a service 
restructure to meet MtC savings.

P
age 54



1

Title Chief Fire Officer Report
Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Chief Fire Officer 
suite of Services

Fire and Rescue Service, Trading Standards, Coroner Service and Civil 
Protection Team. 

Date of meeting 19th September 2018
Purpose of Report To provide a strategic update on issues and key areas of service provision.    

1. Fire and Rescue Service

1.1 HMICFRS update

Tranche one inspections have concluded, with 14 out of the 45 English FRS’s completing their 
inspection. Full details, including the reports detailing the HMICFRS findings are due to 
published later this year. The second HMICFRS data collection request was received in July 
and returned by 14th August. The format was similar to the first data set request, with some 
slight differences in areas based on feedback from Services following the first data collection.

The Service Liaison Lead (SLL) visit has been confirmed. Phil Cox will carry out a two-day 
engagement visit on the 17th and 18th September 2018. The visit will provide first impressions 
of the Service and following the visit a short report will be written. This report will form part of 
the pre-fieldwork phase.

A Service Action Plan has been produced following an internal gap analysis. This aim of the 
action plan is to ensure progress on all areas under inspection. Progress will be monitored 
and supported by the Business Planning, Strategy and Performance Team, who will update 
SLT monthly. In-line with the HMICFRS Communications Strategy regular monthly updates 
via Email, Staff hub and PRIME have been disseminated to all staff. The monthly HMICFRS 
internal meetings continue to provide up-to-date information to the team.

1.2 Draft Statement of Assurance

The draft Statement of Assurance (SOA) has been agreed by the GFRS Senior Leadership 
Team. The SOA 2017/18 explains how the Fire and Rescue Authority is meeting the 
requirements of the Framework and how it has progressed with the stated objectives in our 
Integrated Risk Management Plan. It also demonstrates how the Fire and Rescue Service on 
behalf of the Fire and Rescue Authority, has met and continue to meet our commitment to the 
communities we serve.

This is the sixth year in which the County Council, as the Fire Authority, has produced this 
retrospective report. It brings together key governance, performance, financial and operational 
information relating to Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service during 2017/18. The look and 
feel of the document has been refreshed, with input from GCC Design to ensure compliance 
with corporate branding. It should be noted that for the first time, the SOA not only includes a 
brief report on how on-call firefighters are utilised, it now also includes diversity data and 
information regarding the gender pay gap. The draft SOA will now be taken forward to GCC 
Internal Audit to review and verify data before it is presented to the Lead Cabinet Member and 
Environment and Scrutiny Overview Committee for comment. 

1.3 Green Vehicle Strategy

The Service has considered the wider impact of its fleet in relation to adopting lower emission 
vehicles in line with the Government and GCC reduction programme. There is an aspiration to 
reduce the carbon emissions for GFRS and wider GCC fleet in order to meet the lower 
emissions highlighted in the clear air Zones framework and the wider aspiration for the sector. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



2

The Government highlighted in ‘The road to zero’ strategy for road transport that 25% of the 
central government fleets will be ultra-low emissions by 2022 and 100% of the Central 
Government car fleet will be ultra-low emissions by 2030. There is an expectation that local 
government and other public sector fleets follow suit, resulting zero emissions for all cars and 
vans by 2050.

1.4 Wholetime Duty System Resilience and Productivity Review

GFRS have reviewed the resilience and productivity of the current 2,2 and 4 shift system and 
made recommendations for improvements. The aims of the review were to seek improvements 
that provided:

 Provide best value for money for the people of Gloucestershire 
 Seek continuous improvement around resilience 
 Have regard for economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
 Seek continuous improvements to Firefighter Safety 

The review highlighted that Watch activity peaks between 16:00 and 20:30. Shifts currently 
change over at 09:00 and 18:00. This is likely to disrupt ongoing operational or Safe and 
Well activity. A change of start and finish times could therefore improve effectiveness and 
productivity. The Grey Book limits the configuration of shift times by requiring a night shift of 
no fewer than 12 hours. As a result, the review highlighted the benefits of changing the 
current staffing arrangements to two 12-hour shifts that have the least effect on peak 
demand times. Other recommendations regarding training and absence management were 
to minimise their effects on staffing. 

2. Civil Protection Team
2.1 Business Continuity Management (BCM) Review and Testing Programme 2018/19

Progress on the BCM Review and Testing Programme has continued. In preparation for the 
scheduled GCC questionnaires and review in October, GFRS has produced a test timetable 
to ensure all BCM plans are scrutinised in preparation. BCM Plan owners will use the testing 
toolkit available on the BCM page of staffnet to apply the relative process to test their plans. 

3. Trading Standards Team

3.1 Illegal Tobacco Seizures and Prosecutions

Earlier this week two Gloucester men were prosecuted and ordered to carry out 100 hours 
unpaid work for their involvement in the sale of illegal tobacco from a convenience store on 
Eastgate Street. Both were also ordered to pay £1000 each as a contribution towards the cost 
of bringing the matter to court. Two weeks ago, officers from Trading Standards seized illegal 
tobacco with a value of £6,500 from two cars in a City Centre car-park. Both cars were seized 
for destruction by HMRC.

3.2 Animal Health

A Cotswold farmer was prosecuted for offences including, causing unnecessary suffering to a 
pig, failing to properly dispose of animal carcasses, failing to properly identify and record the 
movement of cattle and failing to provide a suitable environment for his livestock. When 
officers visited the farm, animals were found to be kept in poor conditions and suffering 
multiple injuries. Despite advice being given over several subsequent visits, conditions failed 
to improve and the matter was taken to court. The farmer was ordered to carry out fifteen days 
community service and pay a £55 fine. He was also ordered to pay £350 towards the costs of 
the investigation and disqualified from keeping cattle and pigs for five years.

Report Ends  

Page 56



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2018-19

19 September 2018 7 November 2018 16 January 2019 6 March 2019

Quarter 1 2018/19
Performance Report

Quarter 2 2018/19
 Performance Report

Gloucestershire Local Transport 
Plan – Consultation documentation

Cotswold National Park Status – to 
receive an update from dual-hatted 

GEGSC/ECOSC members on 
progress with the scrutiny review of 

the proposal

To receive an update on 
measures to address the 

backlog of applications for 
Modification Orders to the 

Definitive Map from the Cabinet 
Member for Fire, Planning and 

Infrastructure (TBC)

Trading Standards – to receive a 
report on performance

Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy Annual Improvement Plan 

– to receive a report (TBC)

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



22 May 2019 17 July 2019 18 September 2019 26 November 2019

Quarter 3 2018/19
Performance Report

Quarter 4 2018/19
Performance Report

 

FUTURE ITEMS

1 Soft Flood Alleviation Schemes 6 Footways (in relation to Motion 787: Pavements) 
– to be revisited early 2019

2 Dynamic Purchasing System for Transport 7 To receive a report from the outreach DMMO post 
holder regarding DMMO application demand (to be 
received 6 months from their commencement in role)

3 Infrastructure South – including the third river 
crossing

8 EV Infrastructure – Updates to be included in the 
Commissioning Director’s Report (TBC)

4 Advice from Gloucestershire County Council (as 
Lead Local Flood Authority) to local planning 
authorities

9 Lengthsmen Scheme – To consider the 
effectiveness of the Lengthsmen Scheme 

5 Infrastructure Planning 10 Ubico Update 

P
age 58


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	11 July 2018 Action Sheet

	4 Commissioning Directors Report
	20180919 ECSC Commissioning Directors Report Draft APPROVED
	Highways_Authority
	LED_SL_Project
	RoadSafety
	PublicTransport
	LeadLFA
	Annex1_Cycling_Update
	Annex2_CIL
	Annex3_S106_Contributions
	Annex4_Waste_Performance

	Annex 5 20180719 national-adaptation-programme-2018, Ch6_LG
	Annex 6 Environment & Communities Scrutiny Q1 18-19

	5 Trading Standards
	7 Chief Fire Officer Report
	8 Work Plan



